%J

709 Nortth Eighth Street
MILWAUKEE W COUNTY Milwaukee, W1 53233
FEDERATED LIBRARY SYSTEM ;. 414-286-3210

rax: 414-286-3209
NOTICE

Milwaukee County
Federated Library System
Board of Trustees

Monday, November 26, 2018
9:00 AM.

This meeting will be conducted in the
conference room of the
Milwaukee County Federated Library Svstem
709 N, 8tk Street
Milwaukee, W1 53233

AGENDA

1. Call to order

2. Welcome to new trustee Elizabeth Suelzer

3. Adoption of agenda

4. Approval of minutes: the MCFLS Board of Trustees meeting on Monday, October 15th,

2018
Action Attachment A Page 3

5. Public comment

6. Library Directors Advisory Council—Report of the November 15, 2018 LDAC Meeting

Action AttachmentB Page 9
Please note: Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of
disabled individuals through sign language interpreters or other auxiliary aides.

Helping the public lbrares in Milwaukee County SERVE YOU BEITER www,mcfls.org



JKaniast
Typewritten text
Page 3

JKaniast
Typewritten text
Page 9


November 2018 Page 2 MCFLS Board

Board of Trustees—Administrative reports requiring action

7. Financial Report—October, 2018
Action Attachment C Page 11

8. 2019 MCFLS Board Proposed Meeting Dates and Locations
Action AttachmentD Page 13

9. 2018/19 Strategic Planning - Development Meeting costs
' Action AttachmentE  Page 14

10.2019 Continuing Education Contract
Action AttachmentF Page 19

11. 2019 CFRA Marketwatch Subscription for Member Libraries :
Action Attachment G~ Page 22

12. Resolution for Dr. Martin Lexmond ‘
Action AttachmentH  Page 23

Administrative Informational Items

13. PLSR Recommendations - Update _
Attachment] Page 24

14. Final Sierra Server Replacement Costs
Attachment] Page 57

15. Director’s Report
AttachmentK  Page 60

Next meeting date: (proposed) January 14, 2019, 9:00 a.m., MCFLS Conference Room


JKaniast
Typewritten text
Page 11

JKaniast
Typewritten text
Page 13

JKaniast
Typewritten text
Page 14

JKaniast
Typewritten text
Page 19

JKaniast
Typewritten text
Page 22

JKaniast
Typewritten text
Page 23

JKaniast
Typewritten text
Page 24

JKaniast
Typewritten text
Page 57

JKaniast
Typewritten text
Page 60


November 2018 Page 3 MCFLS Boaréj

Milwaukee County Federated Library System
Board of Trustees

Regular Monthly Meeting held Monday, October 15, 2018
At the Hales Corners Library
5885 S. 116™ Street
Hales Corners, W153130

ROLL CALL
Present: Paul Ziehler, President
Paula Penebaker, Vice President
Kurt Glaisner, Trustee
Martin Lexmond, Trustee
Excused: Nik Kovac, Treasurer
Staff; Steve Heser, Director
Judy Kaniasty, Business Manager
Jen Schmidt, Library Systems Administrator
Others: Rachel Arndt, Milwaukee Public Library

Pat Laughlin, Hales Corners Library
Nyama Reed, Whitefish Bay Public Library
Mason Lavey, City of Milwaukee Budget Analyst

CALL TO ORDER. President Ziehler called the regularly scheduled monthly meeting of the Milwaukee
County Federated Library System Board of Trustees to order at 9:14 a.m.

ADOPTION OF AGENDA. President Ziehler referred to the agenda. Trustee Glaisner moved and Vice
President Penehaker seconded a motion to approve the agenda as presented. Unanimously approved.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES. President Ziehler referred to the notes of the Monday, September 17 meeting
and the minutes of the Monday, August 20 meeting which are shown as Attachment A of the agenda
packet. Vice President Penebaker moved and Trustee Glaisner seconded a motion to approve both
documents as presented. Unanimously approved.

PUBLIC COMMENT. None.

LIBRARY DIRECTQORS ADVISORY COUNCIL. President Ziehler referred to the LDAC reports of the
Septemher 6 meeting is shown as Attachment B of the agenda packet. Nyama Reed reviewed her report
of the October 4, 2018 LDAC meeting, which was distributed at the meeting and is shown as Exhibit 1
attached to these minutes. Trustee Lexmond moved and Trustee Glaisner seconded a motion to accept
both reports and place them on file. Unanimously approved.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES — ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS REQUIRING ACTION.
Mintes (10/15/18)

Attaclhment A (11/26/18)
Page1 of 3



November 2018 Page4 MCFLS Board

Financial Reports. President Ziehler referred to the August, 2018 financial report, which is shown as
Attachment C of the agenda packet. Director Heser reviewed the Septemhber, 2018 financial report,
which was distributed at the meeting and shown as Exhibit 2 attached to these minutes. Vice President
Penebaker moved and Trustee Lexmond secaonded a motion to approve both of the financial reports as
presented. Unanimously approved.

2019 West Milwaukee Charges. President Ziehler referred to Attachment D of the agenda packet, which
he asked that Director Heser review. Director Heser explained since West Milwaukee does not maintain
their own library operations in their community member libraries and MCFLS are paid based on a long-
standing formula. Member libraries complete a calculation of their costs to arrive at a per circulation
rate which is used then to charge West Milwaukee for every circulation of a member library’s materials
and MCFLS is paid an amount towards automation services. Trustee Lexmond moved and Trustee
Glaisner seconded a motion to approve the West Milwaukee charges for 2019 as presented.
Unanimously approved.

Sierra Server Replacement. Director Heser noted that he nothing to distribute at the meeting as the
agenda indicated but wanted to report that there are a few options he is considering—one being that
Innovative would host our data in the Cloud with no hardware being purchased which is the most
expensive as it is a yearly subscription service; a software anly option available with hardware
equipment purchased through an outside vendor other than Innavative (DigiCorp) and purchasing
software only thraugh Innovative or we just learned from Innovative that they have ancther option
which Director Heser feels is the cheapest—buying the hardware through Innovative and the software
too. The 2019 budget has $100,000 for this purpose so any savings could be used for another purpose
or to start saving for the next server replacement project, Vice President Penebaker moved and Trustee
Glaisner seconded a motion to move forward with plans for replacement the hardware as it has been
over five years since the last equipment purchase. Unanimously approved.

2019 MCFLS Budget. President Ziehler asked that Director Heser review his proposed 2019 budget,
which is shown as Attachment E of the agenda packet. Discussion ensued regarding State Aid increase
and hope for further future increases, TEACH paid second half of last year's T1 costs, copay increases for
staff, WILS cooperative purchasing. Trustee Glaisner moved and Trustee Lexmond seconded a motion to
approve the proposed 2019 budget as presented. Unanimously approved. .

2019 MCFLS System Plan. President Ziehler referred to Director Heser who reviewed Attachment F of
the agenda packet which is the 2019 System Plan that is necessary to be sent into the State so State Aid
monies can be released to library systems. The first payment, 75%, is released in November when
reports are approved. Director Heser noted that libraries within Milwaukee County are close to each
other and patrons expect same service. There is high poverty in some areas which affects lower usage
of electronic offerings. Vice President Penebaker moved and Trustee Glaisner seconded a motion to
approve the 2019 System Plan and to submit it fo the State as required. Unanimously approved.

2019 Delivery Contract, Director Heser referred to Attachment G of the agenda packet explaining that it
is a ohe-year extension of the previcus contract which has been in piace for ten years now, which equals
to no increase in cost for all those years. Libraries continue to report positively of the service being
provided. Rachel Arndt noted that service to the Silver Spring library by Action Logistics is essentlal to
that service for those patrons. It was noted that Action Logistics does delivery in a few other areas of

AMintes (10/15/18)
Attachment A (11/26/1 8)

Page2 of 3



November 2018 Page 5 MCFLS Boar;j

the State. Vice President Penebaker moved and Trustee Lexmond seconded a motion to extend the
delivery contract with Action Logistics for another year. Unanimously approved.

2018/19 Strategic Planning. Director Heser reviewed Attachment H of the agenda packet noting that
the process was amended as discussed at the last Board meeting and he is anxious to begin the process.
Trustee Lexmond moved and Trustee Glaisner seconded a motion to approve the agreement and to
move forward with the process. Unanimously approved.

[Trustee Lexmond left at 10:10 a.m.]
ADMINISTRATIVE INFORMATIONAL ITEMS.

County Finance and Audit Committee Hearing. Director Heser reported that he had attended the
budget hearing on October 9 and he shared the MCFLS infographic that summarizes system services
with the Audit committee and spoke of achievements of MCFLS and member libraries and was told that
MCFLS would receive flat funding at best, which is what is in the budget document. Discussion ensued
regarding the necessity to build a relationship with the County to be known at budget time by decision-
makers. Trustee Glaisner added that it is wise to also huild relationships with State representatives.

Director’s Report. Director Heser reviewed his report, which is shown as Attachment | of the agenda
packet. Trustee Glaisner questioned the cost of Hoopla circulations and the amount of times a non-
electronic copy of an item circulates vs. cost of the item. It was noted that Hoopla is primarily second-
rate items and not popular titles but Director Heser will gather some pertinent information to discuss at
a future meeting.

Tour of the Hales Corners Library. Pat Laughlin provided a tour after the meeting was adjourned.

NEXT MEETING DATE. Scheduled for Monday, November 26, 2018 at the MCFLS Offices beginning at
9:00 a.m.

ADJOURNMENT. With no further business to be addressed, Vice President Penebaker moved and
Trustee Glaisner seconded a motion to adjourn at 10:30 a.m. Unanimously approved. |

Minutes (10/15/18)
Attachment A (11/26/18)
Page3 of 3



November 2018 Page6 MCFLS Boar(ﬁ

WHITEFISH BAY PUBLIC LIBRARY
9420 N. Marlborough Drive, Whitefish Bay, Wi 53217

(414) 964-4380; www.wfblibrary.org

To:  MCFLS Board of Trustees

From: .Nyama Y. Reed, WFBPL Director

Date: October 15, 2018 Meeting

Re:  LDAC Meeting Highlights, October 4, 2018 @ Wauwatosa Public Library

1) Steve Heser and Jennifer Schmidt discussed the;
a) 2019 MCFLS System Plan
b) Strategic Plan
c) 2019 meeting location schedule
d} 2018/2019 training schedule
e) MCFLS Emergency help-desk assistance procedure
2) Training on Collection HQ was recently provided. Discussion revolved around the 4-year-no-circ report
{ie no-use items) and the “Grubby” report (ie high use items).
3) Additional discussion on WILS membership for each library and cooperative purchasing discounts.
4) Meeting was completed by 11am so Pete Loeffel provided a tour of the Tosa library.

Exhibit 1 fo Minutes (10/15/18)
Attachnient A (11/26/18)
Page 1 of 1



M.CFLS.
Financial Report
For the Nine Months Ending Septetnber 30, 2018

November 2018 Page7 MCFLS Board

1 Annual Budget Year to Date % Balance %
2

3 General Revenues

4 State Aid Revenue 3 2,766,162 | § 2,766,162 | (100,00)| $ - 0.00
5 Milwaukee County Allocation b 66,650 | § 66,650 | (100.00)] § - 0.00
6  |West Milwaukee Contract -Other 5 48,160 | § 48,160 | (100.00} $ - 0.00
7 Interest on Invested Funds $ 2,000 | & 3,033 | (151.65)] $ (1,033)| 51.65
8  |Member Forms/Supplies Revenue $ 25000 1 $ 14,720 | (58.88)| § 10,280 1 (41.12)
9  |Member Postage Revenue 5 25,000 | $ 17,072 | (68.29)] § 7,928 | (31.71)
10 |Member OCLC Revenue 3 113,232 | & 113,233 | (100.00)] § (1) 0.00
11 |Member Telecomm, Revenue b 9,000 | § 9,000 | (100.00)| § - 0.00
12 |Member IIT Softwre Maint-Basic $ 198,088 | § 198,088 | (100.00)] $ - 0.00
13 |Member IIT Softwre Maint-Other $ 43,050 | § 43,050 1 (100.00)| $ - 0.00
14  iMember Tech. Assist.-Time Rev. 3 15,000 | $ 11,387 | (75.91)| $ 3,613 | (24.09)
[5  |Member Special Projects Revenu b 80,000 % 68,109 | (85.14)] § 11,891 | (14.86)
16 |Member Cataloging Contract Rev § 149,006 | & 149,006 | (100.00)| $ - 0.G0
17 [Member Database Revenue $ 77,132 | § 77,503 | (100.48)| § (371) 0.48
18 |Member Catalog Enhancement Rev $ 24,160 | $ 24,160 1 (100.00)| § - 0.00
19 |Member Ecommerce Transaction $ 9,000 | § 4,282 | (47.58)| & 4,718 | (52.42)
20 |TNS Calls/Notices Revenue 3 5,600 § 2,992 (5343) % 2,608 | (46.57)
21 |Carryover Revenue 5 68,403 | § 68,403 | (100.00) § - 0.00
22 |Staff Benefits/Co-Pay Revenue $ 28,082 | § 19,530 | (69.55)! § 8,552 | (30.45)
23 |Member Digital Content Rev $ 194,179 | § 194,180 | (100.00)| $ 1) 0.00
24 |Member MKE Mixers Rev 3 1,400 | § 1,400 | (100.00)] $ - (.00
25 |Total General Revenues 3 3,948,304 | § 3,900,120 ; (98.78)| § 48,184 |  (1.22)
26

27 |Special Revenues

28 |W. Milwaukee Borrowing Revene $ 52,437 | § 52,437 | (100.00)| $ - 0.00
29 |Ecommerce Revernue $ 200,000 | & 134,701 | {67.35)| § 65,299 | (32.65)
30 |Total Special Revenues 3 252,437 | % 187,138 | (74.13)| § 65,299 | (25.87)
31

32 |Total Revenues b 4,200,741 | § 4,087,258 | (97.30) § 113,483 | (2.70)
33

34 Annual Budget Year to Daie W Balance Y
35

36 |General Expenditures

37 |Fringe Benefils Expense $ 161,845 | § 123,336 76.211 § 38,509 23,79
38 |Salaries Expense $ 340,208 | $ 233,864 68.74| § 106,344 31.26
39 |Telephone Renewal Expense $ 1,600 | § 836 52,25 § 764 47.75
40 |Member Ecommerce Transaction B b 9,000 § 6,118 67.98| § 2,882 32.02
41 |TNS Calls/Notices Expense b 5,600 | § 1,904 3400/ 8 3,696 66.00
42 Mileage Reimbursement Expense $ 700 % 104 14.86] § 596 85.14
43 |Conference/Training Expense $ 8,000 [ § 2,006 2508 % 5,094 74.93
44 |Memberships Expense $ 8,000 | § 3,566 44,58| § 4,434 55.43
45  |Continuing Education Expense $ 8,750 | $ 7,041 8047 $ 1,709 19.53
46 |Office Supplies Expense $ 1,000 | 8 459 49.90| $ 501 50.10
47 |Copy Machire Maint. Expense 3 1,200 | § 560 46.67| § 640 53.33
48 |MCFLS Printing Expense i 500 ] § - 0.00| § 500 | 100.00
49 |MCFLS Printing for Mem Expense $ 5000 9 3,370 67.40| § 1,630 32.60
50 |MCFLS WI Pub Lib Consortium Bx $ 10,616 | § 10,616 100.00| § - 0.00
51 |MCFLS Buying Pool $ 110,000 | § 90,000 81.82] § 20,000 18.18
52 |MCELS Database Expense 5 20,000 | $ 16,053 80.27| § 3,947 19.74

10/10/2018 at 11:28 AM

For Management Purposes Only

Extiibit 2 to Minytes (10/15/18)
Attachinent A (11/26/18)

Page1 of2



November 2018 Page 8 MCFLS Board

M.C.FLS.
Financial Report
For the Nine Months Ending September 30, 2018

53  Member Database Expense $ 80,000 $ 63,504 79.38| § 16,496 20.62
54 |MCFLS Catalog Enhancement Expe 5 72,000 | § 69,988 97.21| § 20121, 279
55  IMember Catalog Enhancement Exp 3 24,160 | § 24,160 100.00| $ - 0.00
56 |MCFLS Postage Expense b 600 | § 564 94.00 $ 36 6.00
57 |Member Postage Expense $ 25,000 | § 16,900 67.60| § 8,100 32.40
58 |Member Forms/Supplies Expense 3 25000 | 3 9,815 39.26| § 15,185 60.74
59 |Telephone Expense b3 5,000 | § 1,879 37.58 § 3,121 62.42
60 |Meetings Expense ) 500 8 157 31.40) 5 343 |  63.60
61 |Insurance Expense b 11,257 | § 11,257 100.00) § - 0.00
62 |Lepal Expense $ 500 | 8 - 0.00] 3 500 | 1060.00
63 |Audit Expense 3 12,600 | § 12,000 | 100.00] § - 0.00
64 |Payroll Service Expense $ 4,000 | § 2,908 72,70 § 1,092 27.30
65  |Server Hardware Maint Exp 3 3250 & 3,250 100.00! § - 0.00
66 |1 Software Support Expense 5 241,138 | § 240,022 99.54| $ 1,116 0.46
67 |Member Telecomm. Expense $ 16,800 | § 8,400 50.00| § 8,400 50.00
68 |MCFLS Telecomm, Maint. Expense 3 10,600 ¢ § 1,490 14.90( $ 8,510 85.10
69 |OCLC Expense 3 125,461 | % 100,000 79711 § 25,461 20.29
70 MCFLS Computer Room Equipment 5 5000 % 4,372 8744 & 628 12.56
71 |MCFLS Equipment Expense $ 15650 | § 13,079 83.57| § 2,571 16.43
72 |Member Special Projects Expens b 80,000 | § 74,265 92.83| § 5,735 7.17
73 }Sorting and Delivery Expense 5 291,700 | § 193,015 66,17 $ 98,683 33.83
74 | South Central Delivery Expense 3 21,250 | § 10,625 50.00] $ 10,625 50.00
75 | Auto Payment/Maintenance Exp. b 1,000 | § 65 6.50| 3 935 93.50
76 |MPL Resource Contract Expense $ 179,801 | § 859,901 50.00] § 89,900 50.00
77 |MPL Rent Lease Contract Exp. s 128,530 | § 64,265 50.00t § 64,265 50.00
78 IILS Expense 3 364501 § 18,225 50.00| § 18,225 50.00
79 MCFLS Catalog Cont Exp to MPL $ 276,676 | § 138,308 49.991 8 138368 50.01
80  |Member Catalog Contract Exp. $ 149,006 | $ 74,503 5000 § 74,503 50.060
81 |MCFLS Collection Dev Tool Exp $ 28,000 | § - 0.00] $ 28,000 | 100.00
82 |Imternet Expense 3 20,500 | § 12,205 59.54| % 8,295 40.46
83 |Contingency Expense b 81,671 | § 5,565 6811 % 76,106 93.19
84 |Member Digital Content Exp 3 194,179 | § 194,179 100,001 § - 0.00
85 |Marketing § 10,000 | § 587 587§ 9,413 94.13
86 |Member MKE Mixer Exp $ 1,400 | § 821 58.64| $ 579 4136
87 |Total General Expenditures $ 2,869,498 | § 1,960,147 68311 § 909,351 31.69
88

89 |Special Expenditures

90 W.Milwaukee Borrowing Expense b 324391 % 52,439 100,001 § - 0.00
91 |RB - MCFLS Payment Expense b 1,078,804 | § 1,066,042 98.82| § 12,762 1.18
92 |Ecommerce Expense $ 200,000 | § 134,701 67.35{ § 65,299 32.65
93  Total Special Expenditures R 1,331,243 | § 1,253,182 94.14| § 78,061 5.86
94

95 |Total Expenditures 5 4,200,741 | $ 3,213,329 76491 § 987412 | 23.51
96

97 Revenue/Expenditures +/- : 3 873,929

-

Exﬁibit 2 to Minutes (10/15/18)
Attaclment A (11/26/18)
10/10/2018 at 11:28 AM For Management Purposes Only Page2 of 2



November 2018 Page 9 MCFLS Board

-November 26, 2018

Cin B Hales Corpurs W 58180

Pelpiiome (143008150

To: MCFLS Board of Trustees

From: Patricia Laughlin, Director

Hales Corners Library

Re: Summary of LDAC Meeting, November 1, 2018
Location: Franklin Public Library

Summary:

2019 MCFLS Budget: Steve reviewed the budget approved by the MCFLS Board at their
October meeting.

MCFLS Strategic Planning update: Steve provided an update on the strategic planning
process, timeline and the all-day meeting planned for week of February 25%. All-day meeting will
probably be held at the UW-Milwaukee Extension facility in the Grand Avenus.

2019 LDAC Chair: After a brief discussion, North Shore director volunteered to be 2019 chair.
MPL representatives pledged to co-chair in 2020.

2019 LDAC meeting locations / MCFLS Board meeting locations: Steve noted the LDAC
meeting locations were finalized and asked directors to consider hosting MCFLS Board
meetings. i

2018-2022 LSTA Strategic Plan: Rachel Arndt, MPL, and Brian Williams-VanKlooster,
Greendale, reviewed the process for developing the LSTA Strategic Plan, the challenges of
developing the plan with staff changes at DPI and the uncertainty of the LSTA funding. The
focus on using LSTA funds has shifted to long-term learning products and projects coming out
of the PLSR discussions.

DPI Digitization Kits: Jen reported on the DPI digitization kits and plans to make the kits
available to member libraries. Uses may be for library staff working on a local digitization project
or for library staff to use with the public to help patrons convert personal content to digital form.
Best practices will these types of services will be shared.

Possible settings change for Sierra paging process: Jen explained a request from the West
Allis library director to change the Sierra paging process. After quite a few questions and the
need for clarification on how the paging process works, there was a consensus to make no
changes.

Collection HQ Update: Enhancement update is planned for December 2018, Jen noted that
library weeding may be looking a “last copy” for suburban libraries, when in fact, MPL may have
a copy. Jen also noted that the threshold for 40 circulations in running the “Grubby Report” can
be changed depending on the area of a collection that is being worked on. Libraries are using

LDAC Report 11/1/18
Attachment B (11/26/18)
Pagel of 2



November 2018 Page 10 MCFLS Board

Collection HQ for weeding and some libraries are now using the product for collection
development.

2018 WLA conference: Steve started the discussion on conference sessions and then
directors who had aftended added their comments. The two baskets donated to the silent
auction by MCFLS members were well-received and went for high prices, helping with the WLA
Foundation’s fundraising efforts.

Additional business:

Narcan/Naloxone Nasal Spray: The general consensus was that libraries do not need to
be at the forefront of emergency treatment for opioid exposure/overdose. First responder
time is usually very quick. Incidents of opioid overdose/exposure of library patrons or
staff in our communities are currently (thankfully) insufficient to justify the cost of staff
training and drug purchase/storage. Several directors noted that participating in training
sessions is helpful and they advised taking the training.

WiFi hotspots: There are 3 hotspots for library staff use, off site for library card
registrations. MCFLS staff can help set-up laptops to use with the WiFi hotspots.
WinSelect: Hieu Tran recommended dropping WinSelect because it was going to a
subscription base system (expensive to maintain) and instead going with a no-cost
Windows solution. Hieu is also looking into a change for Deep Freeze, another system

“that is becoming expensive to maintain.

CE workshops — call for suggestions: Steve asked libraries to send him their suggestions
for continuing education sessions.

CFRA MarketWatch — update: Steve reported not enough libraries signed up for this
product (that is replacing S&P NetAdvantage). For 2019, Steve will recommend to the
MCFLS Board that the system pay for one year, giving member libraries an opportunity
to try it out and get statistics on use. Cost is $6,750 for all member libraries.

LD&L report: Pete Loeffel, Wauwatosa, provided a report on the State funding request,
which includes increased funding for the four service contracts.

LDAC Report 11/1/18
Attachwment B (11/26/18)
Page2 of 2



M.C.E.LS.
Financial Report

November 2018 Page 11

For the Ten Months Ending Cctober 31, 2018

MCFLS Board

11/20/2018 at 1:.55 PM

For Management Purposes Only

1 Annual Budget Year to Date % Balance Y
2
3 General Revenues
4 State Aid Revenue $ 2,766,162 | §  2766,162 | {100.00) § - 0.00
3 Milwaukee County Allocation 3 66,650 | § 66,650 | (100.00) $ - 0.00
6 West Milwaukee Contract -Other 3 48,160 | § 48,160 | (100.00)] $ - 0.00
7 Interest on Invested Funds 3 2,000 | § 3,033 | (151.65) $ (1,033) 51.65
8 Member Forms/Supplies Revenue B 25,000 | § 14,953 | (59.83D)| $ 10,047 | (40.19)
9 Member Postage Revenue $ 25,000 | § 17,312 | (69.25)] $ 7,688 | {30.75)
10 {Member OCLC Revenue $ 113,232 { § 113,233 | (100.00)| § (1) 0.00
11  |Member Telecomm. Revenue $ 9,000 | § 9,000 | (100.00) $ - 0.00
12 |Member III Softwre Maint-Basic $ 198,088 | $ 198,088 | (100.00) §$ - .00
13 Member ITI Softwre Maint-Other $ 43,050 | § 43,050 | (100.00) $ - (.00
14 |Member Tech. Assist.-Time Rev, 3 15,000 | § 13,067 | (87.11)] § 1,933 (12.89)
15 |Member Special Projects Revenu 3 80,000 | § 69,759 | (87.20) § 10,241 (12.80)
16 |Member Cataloging Contract Rev b 149,006 | § 149,006 | (100,00} $ - 0.00
17 |Member Database Revenue 5 77,132 | § 77,503 | (100.48) $ (371) 0.48
1§  |Member Catalog Enhancement Rev $ 24,160 | § 24,160 | (100.00)| $ - 0.00
19 Member Ecommerce Transaction b 9,000 | § 4,680 | (52.00)| % 4,320 | {48.00)
20 |TNS Calis/Notices Revenue $ 5,600 | § 3,055 | (5455 % 2,545 | (4545)
21  |Carryover Revenue $ 68,403 | § 68,403 | (100.00) $ - 0.00
22 |Staff Benefits/Co-Pay Revenue $ 28,082 | § 21,808 | (77.66)t § 6,274 | (22.34)
23 |Member Digital Content Rev $ 194,179 | § 194,180 | (100.00)| $ (1) 0.00
24 |Member MKE Mixets Rev $ 1,400 | § 1400 | (100,00)| $ - 0.00
25  |Total General Revenues $ 3,948,304 | § 3,906,662 | (98.95) § 41,642 (1.05)
26
27 Special Revenues
28 |W, Milwaukee Borrowing Revene b 52437 | § 52,437 | (100.00)} § - 0.00
29  |Ecommerce Revenue b 200,000 | $ 177,861 {88.93)] $ 22,139 | (11.07)
30  |Total Special Revenues $ 252,437 | $ 230,298 {91.23)] § 22,139 {877)
31
32 |Total Revenues $ 4200,741 | § 4,136,960 | (98.48)] $ 63,781 (1.52)
33
34 Annual Budpet Year to Date Y% Balance Yo
35
36  |General Expenditures
37  |Fringe Benefits Expense $ 161,845 | § 137,624 83.03| § 24,221 14,97
38 [Salaries Expense $ 340,208 | § 270,646 79.55| $ 69,562 2045
39  |Telephone Renewal Expense $ 1,600 | § 910 56.88| $ 690 43.13
40  |Member Ecommerce Transaction E $ 9,000 | § 6,839 75.99| § 2,161 24.01
41 |TNS Calls/Notices Expense $ 5,600 % 2,052 36.64| % 3,548 63.36
42 |Mileage Reimbursement Expense $ 700 | $ 104 14.861 3 596 85.14
43 1Conference/Training Expense $ 8,000 | $ 2,006 2508/ § 5,994 74,93
44 |Memberships Expense 8 8,000 | 8§ 3,566 44.58| § 4,434 55.43
45  |Continuing Education Expense $ 8750 | § 7,041 8047 % 1,709 19.53
46 |Office Supplies Expense 5 1,000 | $ 828 82.80 § 172 17.20
47 |Copy Machine Maint. Expense 5 1,200 | $ 762 63.50| § 438 36.50
48 MCFLS Printing Expense 3 500 | % - 0.00| § 500 100.00
49  |MCFLS Printing for Mem Expense 3 5,000 | § 3,370 6740 % 1,630 32.60
50  |MCFLS WI Pub Lib Consortium Ex | § 10,616 | § 10,610 100.00| § - 0.00
51  |MCFLS Buying Pool b 110,000 | $ 90,000 81.82| § 20,000 18.18
52 |MCFLS Database Expense $ 20,000 | § 16,053 80.27] % 3,947 19.74
Financial Report 10/18

Attachment C (11/26/18)

Pagel of2



M.C.F.L.S.
Financial Report
For the Ten Months Ending October 31, 2018

November 2018 Page 12 MCFLS Boar%j

53 |Member Database Expense 5 80,000 | $ 63,504 79.38| § 16,496 20.62
54  |MCFLS Catalog Enhancement Expe | § 72,000 | § 69,988 97.21] § 2,012 2.79
55  |Member Catalog Enhancement BExp $ 24,160 | § 24,160 100.00| § - 0.00
56  |MCFLS Postage Expenge $ 600 | § 564 94.00| $ 36 6.00
57  |Member Postage Expense $ 25,000 | § 16,900 67.60 $ 8,100 32.40
58  |Member Forms/Supplies Expense 3 25,000 | $ 10,965 43.86| $ 14,035 56.14
59  |Telephone Expense b 5,000 | § 2,048 40.96| § 2,952 59.04
60  |Meetings Expense $ 300 § 157 31.40| $ 343 68.60
61  |Insurance Bxpense $ 11,257 | § 11,257 100,00 $ - 0.00
62  |Legal Expense 5 500 | § - 0.00] § 500 100.00
63  |Audit Expense $ 12,000 | $ 12,000 100.00] $ - 0.00
64  |Payroll Service Expense $ 4,000 | § 3,223 80.58! § 777 19.43
65  |Server Hardware Maint Exp $ 3,250 | § 3,250 100.00| § - | 000
66 |10 Software Support Expense $ 241,138 | § 240,022 99.54 % 1,116 0.46
67 |Member Telecomm, Expense $ 16,800 | § 8,400 50.00| § 8,400 50.00
68  |MCFLS Telecomm. Maint, Expense | § 10,000 | & 1,490 14.90| § 8,510 85.10
69 OCLC Expense $ 125,461 | § 125,461 100.00| $ - 0.00
70 | MCFLS Computer Room Equipment | $ 5,000 | § 5,318 106.36| § (318) (6.36)
71 |MCFLS Equipment Expense $ 15,650 | 8 13,079 83.57| § 2,571 16.43
72 |Member Special Projects Expens 5 80,000 | § 94,210 117.76] $  (14,210)) (17.76)
73 |Sorting and Delivery Expense 8 291,700 | § 216,284 74.15| § 75,416 25.85
74 |South Central Delivery Expense 3 21,250 | $ 10,625 50.00| § 10,625 50.00
75  |Auto Payment/Maintenance Exp. 3 1,000 | § 190 19.00| $ 810 81.00
76  |MPL Resource Contract Expense b 179,801 | § 134,851 75.00| $ 44,950 25.00
77  |MPL Rent Lease Contract Exp. 3 128,530 | $ 96,398 75.00| $ 32,132 25.00
78 1LS Expense 8 36,450 | § 27,338 75.00[ § 9,112 25.00
79  |MCFLS Catalog Cont Exp to MPL 5 276,676 | § 207,462 74.98| § 69,214 25.02
80  |Member Catalog Contract Exp. $ 149,006 | § 111,754 75.00 % 37,252 25.00
81  |MCFLS Collection Dev Tool Exp $ 28,000 | $ 28,000 100.00| $ - 0.00
82  |Internet Expense $ 20,500 | § 13,497 65.84| § 7,003 34,16
83  |Contingency Expense $ 81,671 | § 5,641 691 $ 76,030 93.09
84  |Member Digital Content Exp $ 194,179 | § 194,179 100.00| $ - 0.00
85  |Marketing $ 10,000 | $ 587 5.87) § 9,413 94.13
86 |Member MKE Mixer Exp $ 1400 | § 821 58.64| % 579 41.36
87 iTotal General Expenditures $ 2,869498 | $ 2,306,040 80.36| § 563,458 19.64
88
89  |Special Expenditures
90 |W, Milwaukee Borrowing Expense $ 52,439 | § 52,439 100.00] % - 0,00
91 |RB-MCFLS Payment Expense $ 1,078,804 | § 1,061,449 98.39| § 17,355 1.61
92 Ecommerce Expense - $ 200,000 | § 177,861 88.93] § 22,139 11.07
93  |Total Special Expenditures $ 1,331,243 | § 1,291,749 97.03| § 39,494 2.97
94
95 Total Expenditures 5 4,200,741 | § 3,597,789 85.65| § 602,952 14.35
96
97 | Revenues/Expenditures +/- $ 539,171

Financial Report 10/18

Attachment C (11/26/18)

11/20/2018 at 1:55 PM For Management Purposes Only Page 2 of 2



2019 Proposed Meeting Dates

November 2018 Page 13

The MCFLS Board of Trustees has traditionally met on the third Monday of the month. The
schedule below follows that schedule except when it conflicts with a national holiday. The
November and December meetings have been combined on the last Monday in November.

Date

Location

Monday, January 14%

MCFLS Conference Room

Monday, February 18%

MCELS Conference Room

Monday, March 18

MCFLS Conference Room

Monday, April 15

MPL Central - Community Room 1

Monday, May 20

Greendale Public Library

Monday, June 17

Greenfield Public Library

Monday, July 220

South Milwaukee Library

Monday, August 19%

Brown Deer Public Library

Monday, September 23

Hales Corners Library

Monday, October 21%

Franklin Public Library

Monday, November 25"

MCFLS Conference Room

MCFLS Board

2019 MCFLS Board Meetings
Attachment D (11/26/18

Pagelofl



2018-19 MCFLS Strategic Planning Activities Timeline

Activity

When

Information

Summary of the end

November 16,

Review progress summaries documented

status/results of the last 2018 during the last plan implementation to create a
strategic plan implementation summary document.
1st survey to member libraries| December 3 |To gather information and gain understanding
to December |of service priorities member libraries have to
14,2018 |serve their communities

2nd survey to

January 7 to

To gather information and gain understanding

members/board/staff January 23, |of impact of last system plan and where the
2019 system can and should help libraries achieve
their service priorities
Plan development all-day February 28, |All-day meeting of member library directors,
meeting 2018 MCFLS Board members, and MCFLS staff to
identify strategic issues and develop a strategic
plan framework. Agenda packet to be shared
week of February 11, 2019
Staff implementation meeting Week of  [3-hour meeting of MCFLS staff to identify
March 18, limplementation, assessment, and evaluation
2019 strategies and plans. Staff will receive an
agenda packet the week of March 11, 2019
Write the strategic plan April 8 WILS completes first draft
April 11 to |Input from stakeholders on the first draft.

April 26, 2019

Board meeting on April 15th and LDAC on April
18th

April 29 to  |WILS and MCFLS Director collaborate to
May 10, 2019 |complete final draft
May 20 Submit to board for approval

Strategic Planning Meeting Costs

Attachment F (11/26/18)
Pagelofb

November 2018 Page 14 MCFLS Board




November 2018 Page 15 MCFLS Board

UWM School of Continuing Education
o DRIVERSLIX(WISCONRIN Customer and Conference Services ]
:'E}“"WA‘JKEE 161 W Wisconsin Av, Ste 6000 '

nSi:lmoI"uf Conthulng Sdugation Milwaukee W| 53203 ,
(414) 227-3195 / (414) 227-3192

Confirmation
Client Reservation: 37418
Steve Heser Event Name: Stratgic Planning Milwaukee
(B) Milwaukee Cty Federated Library System County Federal Library System
709 N 8th St Status: Confirmed
Milwaukee, WI 53233 Phone: 414-286-8149
Event Type: Conference/Seminar/Workshop :
Event Cocrdinator: Megan Shea
Bookings / Details Quantity Price Amount

SCHOOL OF CONTINUING EDUCATION CONFERENCE FACILITY
STANDARD USAGE AGREEMENT (Revised 2/24/16)

This agreement is between the Board of Regents of tha University of Wisconsin System on behalf of the:

School of Continuing Education
University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee

161 West Wisconsin Avenue, Suite 6000
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53203

hereinafter "School of Continuing Education,” and the User, whose identity is set forth above under Client.

The School of Continuing Education agrees to permit the User fo use the facilities described beginning on Page 3 of this
document but only during the times designated herein. The User agrees to adhere fo the guidelines and restrictions
contained in this document. The User agrees to the following conditions:

1) Both School of Continuing Education and the User acknowledge and agree that neither the University Organization’s
sponsorship of the requested use, nor UWM's approval of the requested use, constitutes endorsement by UWM or the
State of Wisconsin of the views, objectives, philosophy or ideclogy expressed or otherwise propounded by the User,

2) The User will make full payment within 30 days of receipt of an invoice from the School of Continuing Education, for
alf charges incurred, Charges detailed on this agreement are only an estimate of charges. User will recaive a final bill
after the event for the total incurred charges after the event.

3) While space for the number of individuals specified below will be provided in the configuration requested, specific
room numbers will not be guaranteed, and room assignments are subject to change. If the function is scheduled for
more than one day, the School of Continuing Education will make every effort to keep the function in the same room
each day. However, the Schoc! of Confinuing Education reserves the right to assign different rooms on different days.

4) Other functions may be booked in the same room, on the same day, up to one hour before the User's scheduled
starting time, and one hour after the User's scheduled ending time. This condition applies to functions whether one, or
more than onhe, day in duration.

5) Use of the space outside of conference rooms for check-in tables, exhibits, and receptions wiil not be allowed if such .
use may disrupt traffic flow, compromise secutity, create disruptive noise, or significantly detract from the aesthetics of 5
the facifity. The use of corridors and break areas for such purposes will be at the reasonable discretion of the Director

of Conference Services.

8 All food and beverage service must be ordered through the caterer designated by the School of Continuing
Education. No other food or beverages may be brought info the School of Continuing Education conference facility.

11/9/2018 1:24 PM MS Paga 1 of4
Strategic Plunning Meeting Costs
Atftachment E (11/26/18)
Page2 of 5



November 2018 Page 16 MCFLS Board

UWM Schoal of Continuing Education Reservation: 37418 Confirmed

Bookings / Details Quanfity Price Amount

7) The Assistant Director of Conference Services may prohibit the serving and/or consumption of food and beverages
in the computer iabs.

8) Menu ifems to be served must be selected and received by the Conferenice Services office no later than one week
prior to the start of the function. The User will also need to furnish an approximate count at that fime. A final count or
‘guarantes” must be given by the User at least 48 hours prior to the start of the function. Food wilf be available for

110% of the number of people guaranteed. The User will be billed for the number guaranteed or the number served, :
whichever is higher. [

8) The times for meals served in the dining room may be varied by as much as 30 minutes so as to accommodate the
greatest number of functions in the dining room. This wifl be at the discretion of the Assistant Directfor of Conference
Services

1G) All audio-visual equipment and instructional support technology may be rented from or arranged for through the
Conference Services office. Outside equipment may be brought in with the prior approval of the Assistant Dirsctor of
Conference Services. |

11) All functions must be conducted in a manner so as not to interfere with other functions being held simultaneousty in
the School of Continuing Education conference facility. The datermination of whether or not ane function interferes with
another will be within the reasonable discretion of the Assistant Director of Conference Services.

12) No items may be affixed to the walls, inside the rooms or in the corridors. A cork strip and a tack board are
provided inside the rooms for putting up posters, signs, and flip chart sheets. Past-t stvle flip charts are allowed to be
affixed to the walls.

13) The User agrees to pay for alf damage fo the building, fumnishings, and University equipment caused by persons
participating in or allending the function.

14} No smoking is allowed in the School of Continuing Education conference facility (including ecigarettes or vaping).

18) All persons attending a function at the School of Conlinuing Education conference facility must wear a name
badges, either one supplied by, or one approved by, the Conference Services office. This requirement may be waived
by the Assistant Director of Conference Services.

16) The user is responsible for notifying the Conference Services office of any potential aspects of their event that
might require special security at the time space is reserved or as suon as the need becomes apparent. Any additional
security precautions needed fo insure the safety of individuals or the protection of property, including additional
personnel and equipment, rental or purchase, will be the sole financial responsibility of the User. If the Assistant
Director of Conference Services or the UWM Police Chief does not feel an adequate level of security can be
maintained, this agreement may be canceled af any time, Inciuding terminating a function already in progress.

17} The User represents that the purpose of the function is not to, and it will not use the School of Continuing
Education conference facifity directly or indirectly, to sell a service or product, or solicit prospective business, political
contributions, or financial contributions, that will financially benefit any individual or entity.

18) All room vonfigurations must comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

19) If a room reservation is canceled the following financial penaities will apply, if the Conference Services office is
nofffied of the cancellation in writing !

More than 6 months in advance No penalty i
1-6 Months in advance 50% of the orlginal room usage fee(s)
Less than 1 Month in advance 100% of the criginal room usage fee(s)

20) A depaosit of not fess than 50% of all estimated charges may be required within two weeks of the time the space is
puton hold. This condition doas not apply to UW System institutions or depariments who can in ligu of a deposit,
furnish a signed Authorization for Direct Charge form. If required, the deposit amount will be listed below in the
reservation summary.

21) No later than 14 days prior to the Date of Use, the User will provide proof of financial responsibility in the form of a

11/9/2018 1:24 PM MS Page 2 of 4
Strategic Plonning Meeting Costs
Attachment E (11/26/18) ‘
Page 3 of b |



November 2018 Page 17 MCFLS Board

UWM Scheol of Continuing Education Reservation: 37418 Confirmed
Bookings / Details Quantity Price Amount

certificate of insurance that names both the Board of Regents and UWM as named insureds, and that is deemed to be
acceptable by the UWM Risk Management Office.

22) Abide by all applicable University of Wisconsin System and University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee administrative code
provisions and policies.

23) The User agrees that it is solely responsible for the payment of any federal, state, or local taxes which may be
fevied against the activity for which the faciiities are being used.

24) By signing this agreement, User agrees that, pursuant to UWM’s Criminal Background Check Policy (S-14.8), if it is
using UWM lands or facilifies to operate multi-day or overnight programs for minors, it represerits that aff of ifs
employees, affiliates, and volunteers with access to minors have satisfied a criminal background check by a criminal
background check vendor that includes a check of the vendor's proprietary national criminal background check
database.

26} In connection with the performance of work under this Agreement, to the extent required by law, the User agrees:
(a) not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of age, race, religion, color,
handicap, sex, physical condition, developmental disability as defined in Wis. Stat. s. 51.05(5), sexual orientalion or
natlonal origin, including in, but not limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or
recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for fraining,
including apprenticeship; (b) except with respect fo sexual orientation, to take affirmative action to ensure equal
employment opportunities; and (c) to post in conspictious places, avallable for empioyees and applicants for
employment, notices to be provided by the contracting officer setting forth the provisions of the nondiscrimination
clause.

26} School of Conlinuing Education hereby certifies and agrees that the above-described use does nof does not
defract from the university purposes for the facility, the missions of the university, and the intended functions of the
facility,

27) The User (A) assumes all responsibility for the event; (B) indemnifies and holds harmless the Board of Regents of
the University of Wisconsin System, the University of Wisconsin-Mitwaukee, all of its officers, employees, and agents
from any actions or causes of action, claims, demands, liabilities, loss, damage, injury, cost or expense of whatever kind
or injuries or death) of any person(s} or damage to or foss of any property; (C) provide the UWM Risk Management
Department with evidence of financial responsibility in the form of certificates of insurance if requested; (D) comply with
all laws, ordinances, and regulations required with intended use and occuparncy.

Parking Credits:

36

Thursday, February 28, 2019
9:00 AM - 4:00 PM Strategic Planning Milwaukee County Federal Library System (Conflrmed) 7240
Reserved: 8:30 AM - 4:30 PM
Lateral/Classroom for 30
Room Charge: 1 $200.00 $200.00
Instructional Media - A/V :
8:00 AM - 4:00 PM Set up in classrocm

LCD for Use w/lnstructor's Laptop 1 $100.00 $100.00
Catering;
12:00 PM - 1:00 PM On-site Caterer for 25
Simpler AM Package 26 $5.00 $130.,00
Standard Lunch Buffet* 26 $14.00 $364.00
Standard PM Break* 26 $5.00 $130.00
Subtotal $924.00
Service Charge {18%) $112.32
Sales Tax - Food & Beverage $38.06
11/4/2018 1:24 PM MS Page 3 of 4

Strategic Planning Meeting Costs

Attaclhment E (11/26/18)

Page 4 of 5



November 2018 Page 18 MCFLS Board

UWM School of Continuing Education Reservation: 37418 Confirmed

Bookings / Details Quantity Price Amount
{6.1%)
Sales Tax - Non-Food (5.6%) ' 35.60
Grand Total $1,079.98

The individual signing on behalf of the User represents that s/he is fully authorized to execute this agreement on behalf
of the User. The undersigned agrees to the above arrangements and conditions.

Forthe User

Printed Name Tifle

Signature Date

By the Beard of Regents of the

University of Wisconsin System

on behalf of the University of

Wisconsin-Milwaukee, School of Continuing Education:

Printed Name Title

Signature Date

11/9/2018 1:24 PM MS Page 4 of 4
Strategic Planning Meeting Costs
Aftackmment E (11/26/18)
Page 5 of 5



November 2018 Page 19 MCFLS Board

MILWAUKEE COUNTY FEDERATED LIBRARY SYSTEM
and
BRIDGES LIBRARY SYSTEM

Continuing Education Agreement
-2019-

WHEREAS, the quality of life afforded to the citizens of Milwaukee County is enhanced by
access to the information and other library resources of its libraries; and,

WHEREAS, this access is enhanced by the availability of well-trained library staff, and,

WHEREAS, the Milwaukee County Federated Library System, hereinafter referred to as
MCFLS, is required by Wisconsin State Statues to provide continuing education for
the staff of its member libraries; and

WHEREAS,  the Bridges Library System, hereinafter referred to as BRIDGES, and MCFLS share
the goal of improving public access to information and other library resources; and,

WHEREAS, BRIDGES has the expertise and staff resources available for the design and
administration of continuing education programs for library personnel; and,

WHEREAS, both MCFLS and BRIDGES recognize that it is mutually beneficial to cooperate
in the development of continuing education programs; therefore,

BE IT RESCLVED THAT, MCFLS and BRIDGES set forth the following commitments:
MCFLS AGREES:

1. To provide payment to BRIDGES in the amount of six thousand four hundred thirty four
($6,434) for the provision of the continuing education services described below.

2. To provide direction and support through the MCFLS Director in regards to topics for four ;
continuing education programs. !

3. To work with BRIDGES to assure that appropriate facilities are available for the
aforementioned programs.

4, To provide coordination with BRIDGES through the MCFLS Director and/or his or her
designee,

Continuing Education Contract-2019
Attachment F (11/26/18)
Page10f3



November 2018 Page 20 MCFLS Board

BRIDGES AGREES:

1. To work with the MCFLS Director and/or his or her designee to clarify topics selected
collaboratively by MCFLS and BRIDGES and design four (4) continuing education
programs to be presented during the calendar year of January 1 - December 31, 2019 that
are based on these topics. At least one of the programs will be hosted at a location within
Milwaukee County.

2. To provide admission to workshops or other continuing education events without charge to
any number of MCFLS and BRIDGES staff or trustees, and/or MCFLS member library
staff or trustees, and to representatives from any public library in any other Wisconsin
library system.

3. To allow free participation by staff from its non-public library members and any other non-
members, provided that such participation dees not limit attendance by the staff and/or
trustees of MCFLS and BRIDGES member libraries.

4. To undertake the preparation of training outlines. selection and negotiation for necessary
speakers and audiovisual materials, design and reproduction of workshop supportive
materials, program announcements, and the provision of any other materials, supplies,
personnel or special equipment required for the workshops.

5. To assume all costs for necessary honoraria, supplies, printing, rental of equipment or other
expenses of a miscellaneous nature, using the MCFLS payment of $6,434 to cover these
expenses.

6. To provide adminisirative and clerical services for registration and on-site support during
the continuing education workshops on the dates mutually agreed upon by MCFLS and
BRIDGES.

BOTH MCFLS and BRIDGES AGREE:

1. To undertake every reasonable measure to ensure the satisfactory completion of the
continuing education provisions of this agreement, including the review of the evaluations
of the workshops to insure suceessive programs are further improved for the benefit of the
participants.

2. To review this agreement annually and either extend it or terminate it, by mutual consent.
In the event that either party does not wish to extend or amend the agreement, it shall
terminate effective with the end of the calendar year to which the agreement applies.

Continuing Education Contract-2019 ‘
Attachwment T (11/26/18) |
Page2 of 3 :



November 2018 Page 21 MCFLS Board

THESE PROVISIONS BEING HEREBY INDIVIDUALLY AND MUTUALLY ACCEPTABLE
TO MCFLS AND BRIDGES, THEIR AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES DO HEREBY
APPROVE THIS AGREEMENT EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2019.

FOR THE MILWAUKEE COUNTY FOR THE BRIDGES
FEDERATED LIBRARY SYSTEM LIBRARY SYSTEM
President President

Date Date
Director/Secretary Secretary or Designee
Date ' ‘ Date

Continuing Education Contract-2019
Attachment F (11/26/18)
Page3 of 3



November 2018 Page 22 MCFLS Bargﬂ

CFRA research is the ideal
solution to help educators,
studenis and others

make new connections %
and gain fresh insights.

GrHA RESEARCH 8 DIFFERENT

= More thorough analysis of companies and investment options
» Research goes well beyond reviewing past performance

* Focus on facters that drive future success

» Cost-effective and easy to access

THE CFRA PLATFORM D UNIQUE

MarketScope Academic has been developed tc address the most common Issues ,
faced by college professors, librarians and students: :
» |ntuitive and easy to navigate. No training required, jump right in !
» No pop-ups or advertisements '
» [P Authentication and S30 available for seamless access across organizaticns

WHY CFRA

CFRA is one of the leading independent research providers globally, but are still
small enough to care. We're commitiad to libraries and higher academic institutions.
. Flexibility to integrate with internal or external research management platforms
. Independent research is our business model; we do not provide investment
advisory services or manage portfolios

Pricing is transparent, making it easy to see the fees paid for the research

" Streamlined regulatory processes and procedures

GET STARTED  Formore information about CFRA's solutions for libraries
and academic institutions, please call 1 800-220-0502
or visit newpublic.cfraresearch.com/msacademis/

2019 CFRA Marketwatch
Attachment G (11/26/18)
Pagel of1




November 2018 Page 23 MCFLS Board

RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION

Dr. Martin Lexmond is leaving the Board of Trustees of the Milwaukee
County Federated Library System (MCFLS), after a tenure of dedicated and
exemplary service; and

WHEREAS, Dr. Lexmond served with distinction as a Board Trustee since
January, 2015; and

WHEREAS, Dr. Lexmond brought a unique perspective to the MCFLS Board,
simultaneously serving as the Superintendent of the West Allis-West
Milwaukee School District as well as serving on the West Allis Public
Library board; and

WHEREAS, Dr. Lexmond assisted as trustee in the development and
implementation of the MCFLS 2015-17 Strategic Plan and has lent his
expertise to the system on numerous occasions; and

WHEREAS, Dr. Lexmond has consistently sought to improve MCFLS
services and has, at all times, given the highest priority to the needs of the
citizens of Milwaukee County; and !

BE IT NOW RESOLVED, that the Milwaukee County Federated Library
System Board of Trustees do herewith express heartfelt thanks to Trustee
Dr. Lexmond for his service, and wishes him well in all future endeavors.

FURTHERMORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution be
presented to Dr. Lexmond and that a copy be printed as an attachment to
the agenda of the regular meeting of the MCFLS board of Trustees held
November 26th, 2018.

Dy, Martin Leximond Resolution
Attachment H (11/26/18)
Pagel of 1



November 2018 Page 24 MCFLS Board

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6
Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on

November 7, 2018

BACKGIOUNG cetevvvtieeee st sttt ettt s s eeeseee st et s eeaesee s e eesenaes serssraersesesea. 3
Recommendation Development PrOCESS ...t 4
Directives Gleaned from the Library Community through the Recommendation Development
P TOCEES vtttk et et et b s sae et e b e e eh e e e aRe et e L E et et et e eee e e trreeerees 8
Recommendation 1 - Develop System Standards, Best Practices, and Accountability.............. 10
RECOMMENAAIION c.eeiiiriee e e et ee e se e ettt e bt eee e et e eee e et e eee v s e e neaes 10
SUMIMIBIY 11 ettt e e s e e s b e bt s se et et e e e eabses bt e e eb e s e e et e eee e e semeeee st eaneneens 10
WAIUE PIOPOSIHION ..ottt ettt e e et et et et e et e e e e tes 11
Suggested IMpPlemMeEntalion PrOCESS ...ttt eeeeeeee et e e et eee st e e e e e e vt earer et bets 12
Suggested FUNTING SOUITE(S) ..o v seesees e see st b et s s ne e e e e e erestaesreesanteserees 13
MBESUINMNG SUCCESS ..ottt e e e e e et e e st s e e e seeeae e eas bt arasaes e sbeann s eneent e 13
Recommendation 2 - INcentives for ChanQe..... ...t e et revaars 14
RECOMMENTBTION 1oviviitieie et e b et b e e s re b e s st e sret e eetennens 14
SUIMIMIATY .. et cteesceese et e eeee e e e et e se e sae e e e e et e e et ee e eessertesree bt es tbesben et e s en e en e et e e eesanaeeeeeeeseeeeeeree 14
VAIUE PrOPOSHION ..ottt b e e res et et ee et e eeees e e e e eeesete st aate e, 14
Suggested iIMplemMentation ProCESS.. ... e et e 15
MEBSUTING SUCCESS 1.iiviiisiiririseens st ere st s eme st e st rae et se et s e e s veeeesa e et et ena st e smaeeeneereeeoe 15
Recommendation 3 - Reduce the Number of Systems..........ccoevv i e ————————— 16
Recommendation O R PPN PSPPI PR 16
SUMMATY ..o e e s LR e et bt et e e e eee e tte e s ireeees 16
ValUE PTODOSITION wevviiiiit it et s et e b e bbb e e e e e e rnereennesenennas 16
Suggested IMplementation ProCeSS ... et ee e aen e 17
MEBASUMNNG SUCCESS ... cvuuriiisiiiiiie e et rariees et s e s ee e e eae b et e tessat e te e s bt she et 8t eaeeeeneneearesrens 17
Recommendation 4 - Evaluate Funding DistribUtion. ... e 18
RECOMMENAATION ....ecverveiirint et iiere ettt s se 1o eeeaeeeeeresets e setsas e e et e seeenene e renerrenne e 18
SUITIMIAEY 1ttt vrees et e se e e et e et v e et b e R e e 4 E b e £anesaee e seeesote s e s ab b e e anene st eeeeaneeesaeeaeranessteesssnes 18
VL=V = 2 e T Ta =] o T o T OO UTUUPURRTRURP 19
Suggested IMplementation PrOCESS .. et en e s e et e eee e et e eeeeaeee 19
MEASUNMNG SUCCESS cuit i ieeeriee ettt s e e e e e e et e e e s es e e esasae e seeeee s ieeerreessieenseeersseesrens 19
Racommendation 5 - DEliVery PIlDES ...ttt e s are s e aeesstee e 20
RECOMMENAATION .ii e s e e s sr e s srearar e e e vt st eaes et reenesreenoes 20
SUIMITIATY ottt ittt c e et ese s st e st reae e e e s e sbeaaeseeeeeens it st s be et bR e e e b 440 1 emneee e e armaneenrens 20
Value Proposition .....cocooiiimiiieci e et et e et ene et 21
Suggested Implementation ProCESS ... e et 22
A UG Sl TS S tuui it ie e e esiee e e s reer s et rr et e et b e e et e e ees st e ar iees et e e s es e eaabessanteeeteesantenanns 23
Recommendation 6 ~ DISCOVENY LAYEI ...t et 24
RECOMMEBNTALION .ot c e e et e e e s e see e et vrarr e e e et nntae st eebae e 24
SUMIMIBINY .eci et et et e e e e e et e e e s e et e e s abb b e s et b b e s e e bt b e e e e e e e e eerenneeeanmen ey erennsnanees 24
Goals of the Recommendation ... e e s 24
1

PLSR Steering Com. Draft Report #6
Attaclument I (11/26/18)
Page 1 of 33



November 2018 Page 25 MCFLS Board

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6 .
Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on |
November 7, 2018

Valle Proposilion . e e 25
Suggested IMplementation ProCeSS .. e s 25
MBASUNING SUCTESS 1 eeeeitcee e e etttk ar et r e e et eers e et e £ arae 2t e emee et bt e nes st br e e e e e s annsenes 26
Recommendation 7 —~ Learning Management System for Professional Development................ 27
RECOMMENUELIONT ... eiit ittt e s e r b e ana s e et e enaarsaee s e e 27

S UMITIAIY 11 octe ettt ittt ettt e e e e et e oot b e e e bkt et e oo 4h e e ebe s ebe s £a b e e et o4 oh b b e et oot s £ e Rt et be e ereeen hb e e 27
Goals of the Recommendation ... e st 27
VAU Proposition . e e 28
Suggested Implementation PrOCESS ... 28
o Ee LT a o IS T L= S PSRRI 29
Appendix A: Library Systems in Wisconsin: A Brief History oo e 30
Appendix B: Funding Strategies and SOUICES ..o e 32
2

PLSR Steering Com. Draft Report #6
Attachment I (11/26/18)
Page 2 of 33



November 2018 Page 26 MCFLS Board

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6
Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on
November 7, 2018

Background

At their meeting in August 2012, System and Rescurce Library Administrators Association of :
Wisconsin (SRLAAW) conducted a summit and subsequent survey to examine how library
systems could continue to most effectively deliver services to thelr member libraries. This action :
was largely in response to shrinking governmental budgets and consolidation of public library
systems in other states throughout the nation. The subsequent report, Creating Effective
Systems, recommended a need to conduct further studies on library system services, size, and
strategies for implementing optimally configured systems and establishing service and

administrative standards for public library systems.1

During the development of the 2014-2015 biennial budget, the Joint Finance Committee
recommended the Department of Administration analyze library systems to “conduct a study to
identify potential savings in public library systems through consolidation, technology, efficiencies,
LEAN practices and service sharing” in consultation with the Department of Public Instruction
(DPI). The Governor deemed this recommendation unnecessary and vetoed it and acknowledged

DPI| as the appropriate agency to conduct such a study without the need for legislative directive.?

In response, DPI's Division for Libraries and Technology initiated a Lean System Study Work
Group to examine demand for services by member libraries and the resources and capacity of
public library systems to provide these setvices. This work group identified arsas of service
provided by library systems that could be made more efficient. The major recommendation was
that study continue and experts from each topical area be tapped to develop further

recommendations and implementation s’[rategies.3

While the Lean System Study Work Group finalized their report, the Council on Library and
Network Development (COLAND) appointed a workgroup in July of 2014 to develop a strategic
vision for library systems in the 21st century. This workgroup presented a series of

recornmendations to State Superintendent Tony Evers in January of 201 54;

e Library Consulting - Leverage distributed expertise to provide specialized consulting, i
verified by DPI; :

¢ Provide and Support Technology Accass through aggregation of software and services
including shared platforms and expertise;

¢ One State, One Collection;

» Resource libraries must redefine their value proposition for the twenty- first century;
¢ Delivery Service - Transition to multi-hub delivery network;

¢ Coordinate Electronic Resources - Maximize purchasing power;

o Continuing Education - Maximize impact of continuing education funding

e Eliminate statutory language requiring Department of Public Instruction (DPI} to request
13% for library system aid.

3

PLSR Steering Comt. Draft Report #6
Attachment I (11/26/18)
Page 3 of 33



November 2018 Page 27 MCFLS Boaréd

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6
Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on
November 7, 2018

COLAND included a road map and timeline with their recommendations to further study how a
public library systems could most efficiently and effectively deliver services in the topic areas
identified by the Lean System Study Work group. The intent was to lead change at the local and
regicnal level to maximize organizational resources and state funding in order to deliver the

highest quality library services to Wiscansin residents for the tax dollars prov]ded.5

Recommendation Development Process

In September 2015, the State Superintendent appointed an 11-member steering committes to
oversee a multi-year project to re-envision how Wisconsin Public Library Systems serve
Wisconsin's 381 public libraries. Membership was selected based upon library and sysiem size
as well as consideration for geographic distribution.

Members of the Steering Committee:

Name Library Type of Library | Role
Kent A. Barnard Patterson Memorlal Library, Very Small Member
Wild Rose Public
Jon M. Bolthouse Fond du Lac Public Library Large Public, Member
non-resource
Beth A. Carpentef Kimberly-Little Chute Public Mid-sized Public | Member
Library’
Bridget C. Christenson | Hatch Public Library, Mauston Small Public Member
Johin DeBacher Department of Public Instruction | State Library DPI Liaison
Agency
Kristie L. Hauer Shawano City-County Library County Joint Member
' Public (& Rural)
Paula Kiely Milwaukee Public Library Large Public & | Vice-Chair
System
Resource
Jessamyn C. Lee- Platteville Public Library Small to Mid Member
Jones Public (Small
Resource)
Bryan J. McCormick Hedberg Public Library, Public (& COLAND

' After appointment, Beth accepted a position with the Appleton Public Library.

PLSR Steering Com. Draft Report #6

Attachment T (11/26/18)

Page40f33

4




November 2018 Page 28

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6
Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on
November 7, 2018

Janesville Resource; & Representative
COLAND)
Stephen R. Ohs Lakeshores Library System Small System Member
John T. Thompson IFLS Library System Large System; Chair
LEAN feam

[Insert Map of Steering Committee distribution with library system beoundaries]

The State Superintendent charged the Steering Committee with providing strategic visicn,
oversight, and general leadership in the development of recommendations to update and refine
the roles and services of Public Library Systems and maximize public investment in library

systems and public libraries.®

The Steering Committee, as well as all workgroup members, were made up of volunteers who
had other full time jobs. Recognizing this, the Steering Committee issued a nationwide Reguest
for Proposal for a project manager to plan, organize, and implement a process focused on eliciting
recommendations from the library community. The project manager was also charged with
facilitating meetings and structuring the idea generation of the workgroups. Two responses were
received. The Steering Committee selected WILS as the project manager during a mesting held

in October during the 2015 Wisconsin Library Association’s Annual Conference.” The following
core principles were adopted by the Steering Committee in December 2015:

¢ Communication is critical for the success of the process;

e The process relies on openness and trust from all participants;

¢ Information and data should be the bedrock of the process;

e QOutside expertise will add credibility and weight to the cutcomes;

e The process will be used to grow skills needed to maintain flexible and community-
driven service into the future,

The project manager led the Steering Committee through a process to form topical workgroups
in March of 2016. Members of the workgroups were selected from a pool of voluntary applicants.
These members were assighed fo workgroups based on their subject matter experiise or their
status as a user or customer of a service area. Each workgroup was meant to address statutory
library system obligations as defined by statute. Ultimately, the following 7 workgroups were
formed:

e Chapter43

o Collections?

2 Originally called XXXXX
5

MCFLS Board

PLSR Steering Comn. Draft Reporl #6

Attachment I (11/26/18)
Page 5 of 33



November 2018 Page 29 MCFLS Board

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6 ‘
Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on
November 7, 2018 !

¢ Continuing Education/Consulting®
s Delivery

¢ |LL/ILS/Discovery®

¢ Resource Libraries

e Technology

These workgroups were instructed to research their service area extensively and meet regularly
to develop recommendations to the steering committee for inclusion in their final report,
Workgroups were also instructed to identify, illustrate, and contextualize existing inequities in
library service throughout the state and focus on maximizing equity of access for the citizens of

Wisconsin, not the libraries or library systems.8 As workgroups developed recommendations,
feedback was solicited from the library community in a number of ways, including: an external
group of participants tapped to review findings through surveys, presentations made at the 2016
and 2017 Wisconsin Library Association’s annual conference, monthly calls scheduled with

SRLAAW, and virtual question and answer pericds open to the pub[ic.9 The Steering Committee
also identified communication liaisons in each system to help disseminate information to member
libraries and library boards. Final reports from each workgroup were delivered to the Steering

Committee on April 2, 2018.°

After the completion of the workgroup phase, WILS transitioned from an active project manager
tole to a administrative and logistics coordinator role. The Steering Committee awarded a hid
from Russell Consulting to perform the role of facilitating meetings and the decision making
process.

The Steering Committee reviewed workgroup recommendations independently, as well as more
formally at two in-person retreats in February and April of 2018. During these retreats, two
groups of collaborators outside of the committee were identified to help craft a final report.

Ten library professionals were selected from a pool of applicants to be Core Recommendation i
Ceollaborators (CRC). The Steering Committee selected the members of the CRC based on
geographic area and type of library to attempt to instill diverse thought into the process. The
CRC worked with the Steering Committes on developing and testing overarching models of
governance that could accommodate the workgroup repeort recommendations. This work was
facilitated by Russell Consulting and took place during two all day meetings.

The findings of this work was shared with the library community and officially made available for
public comment from June 11 to July 20. All public comments were compiled by WILS and
made available to Steering Committee and CRC members.

3 Originally two workgroups, merged as overlap was identified.
* Originally two workgroups, merged as overlap was identified.

B

PLSR Steering Com. Draft Report #6
Attachment 1 (11/26/18)
Page 6 0f 33 :



November 2018 Page 30 MCFLS Board

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6
Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on
November 7, 2018

A Model Recommendation Summit was held July 30-31 with XX participants joining the Steering
Committee and CRC members to further test and discuss the model of governance. At the
conclusion of the Summit, XX areas of consensus were identified.

The Steering Committee reconvened in person on August 16, to discuss the outcomes of the
Summit and to begin to form concrete recommendations, Steering committee members were
individually tasked with drafting concrete recommendations for review by the larger committes.
A small writing subcommittee waorked to refine the initial drafts and shared their progress with
the Steering Committee

7

PLSR Steering Com. Draft Report #6
Attachment I (11/26/18)
Page 7 0of 33



November 2018 Page 31

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6
Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on
November 7, 2018

Directives Gleaned from the Library Community
through the Recommendation Development Process

The process of developing the recommendations contained in this repert was robust. A wide
range of stakeholder groups were consulted for feedback. Library directors, library staff, system
directors, system staff, library and system board trustees, county officials, as well as past and
present DPI officials were all involved in the process. Large amounts of project documentation
were made available to these stakeholder groups, and feedback was received from individuals
and beards at the library, system and county levels. The Recommendation development
process culminated in a summit-style meeting, followed by a final public comment period on the
content derived from that summit. The amount of feedback received by the Steering Commiitee
was both significant and prescriptive. An effort was therefore made to distill key directives
expressed by the community at-large.

Bervice inprovemenis must bensil HBbrary patrons.

Wisconsin public libraries and systems have a strong history of warking together to provide
excellent services. One of the Principles of the Process is to “ensure all Wisconsin public
iibraries have the capacity to provide equitable access to excellent library services regardless of
the race, sthnicity, income, gender, or employment status of the people they serve, or their
location within the state”. Any service improvements moving forward must fulfill this principle
and ultimately benefit the end-user, the library patron.

Workgroup mports should be used as frameworks for speclile service
improvemeants.

The Workgroups consisted of service experts from across the state. The studies they completed
of current service areas were thoughtful and in-depth. Inequities were examined, which led to
recemmendations for improving service. Upon review by the library community, several
Workgroup recommendations garnered early support for service improvements in specific
areas: delivery, discovery layer, technology, and the creation of a CE portal. The Workgroup
reports provide a solid foundation for moving forward in these areas.

Take antlen now on resommendations will rebust suppord

The specific areas mentioned above represent areas of greatest need for libraries; areas that
would provide immediate, positive impact on service to Wisconsin residents. With the
Workgroup reports serving as frameworks for improvements, action must be taken guickly and
purposefully. Some of the Workgroup recommendations require more significant changes in
order to affect service improvement. For example, state-scale implementation of a service such
as technology would require changes to governance structures, funding, administration, and
would require widespread support from the library community. It became clear throughout the

8

PLSR Steering Com. Draft Report #6

Attachment I (11/26/18)
Page8of33 - '

MCFLS Board



November 2018 Page 32 MCFLS Boarid

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6

Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on
November 7, 2018

Recommendation Development Process that organic, non-mandated change should lead
improvements forward.

Service mprovemenis must he soundiv-bnplemented,

Implementation of service improvements must be driven by effective research, planning, |
execution, and change-management. Implementation should also be supported by adequate
resources. The library community expressed concerns about how administration, funding, and
governance might change with proposed service improvements. Any service improvement
moving forward must have a well-developed plan for how it will be managed, who will govern
the service, how it will be implemented, how local relationships will be maintained or developed,
as well as evidence of how efficiencies will be gained.

Potentisl Unintended Consequences Should Be Antlcipated and Sludied

Tweak and add content later.

9

PLSR Steering Com. Draft Report #6
Attachment I (11/26/18)
Page 9 of 33



November 2018 Page 33

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6
Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on
November 7, 2018

Recommendation 1 - Develop System Standards,
Best Practices, and Accountability

Recommendation

Establish mandatory system standards to ensure equitable delivery of services to member
libraries in all parts of tha state.

Create a formal mechanism for library systems fo define best practices outside of system
standards and make those hest praciices available 10 all library systems in the state,

Summary

Library systems are required fo provide a full range of services per Wisconsin State Statule
43,24 to gualify and maintain its eligibility to receive state ald. The purpose of standards for
Wisconsin public fibrary systems and system staff is to encourage the further development of
quality service by providing public library systems with a tool to identify strengths, recognize
areas for improvement, and strengthen accountability to member libraries, it could be unlikely
that all systems would meet thess standards with current state funding. Instead, systems may
collaborate and/or consolidate in order to provide the level of service the standards would
represent.

Wisconsin State Statute 43,24(3) currently allows the Department to reduce aid 1o systems if
they don't comply with existing standards. Reduction in aid could place additional complications
on a system to meet the standards. It is recommended that any system unable to adhere to the
standards should be required to develop a 12-month compliance plan approved by the Division
to maintain current aid levels. The compliance plan should include resources needed,
collaborative and/or consolidation opportunities and a stakeholders’ communication plan. . .

It is recommended that the library system standards mirror the design of the public library
standards for ease of use. The sections should include: '

e Statutory Requirements (Chapter 43.15; 43.16; 43.17; 43.19; 43.24; 43.58)
e Systems
o Library Membership
e Tier One, a system must meet all of the Tier 1 standards (base funding?)
e Tier Two, all of Tier 1 and ali but two of the Tier 2 standards (performance
incentives)

10

PLSR Steering Cout. Draft Report #6

Attachment I (11/26/18)
Page 10 of 33

MCFLS Board



November 2018 Page 34

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6
Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on
November 7, 2018

It is also recognized that there are best practices in operating a library system that should not be
necessarily addressed through formal standards but would be valuable in standardizing for
further study and improvement of library systems in the future. For example:

e Accounting Standards

The system business managers working with the the Public Library Data, Funding and
Compliance Consultant build upon the work of the Funding Subcommittee to develop
standardized revenue and expenditure accounts and terminology to provide censistent
and uniform reporting of income and expenditures for the System Annual Reports and
System Program Budgets and Plans.

s Consulling Services

[t is recommended that a team of system direcfors/consultants representing the 16
library systems along with Division represeniation develop a tracking system which uses
the broad consulting areas identified in the PLSR Consulting Workgroup report as well
as the type {email, phone, in-person, site) and number of interactions per year.

e (Governance

The level of individual board member awareness of library statutes and system
operafions can vary. A “Trustee Essentials” does not exist for system board members
instead they rely on the more general varsion as their guide.

The creation of a formal mechanism to define best practices and standardization of data
collection would better allow Wisconsin library systems to review the impact of the PLSR
process on state residents as well as continue to improve system services into the future.

Value Proposition

Library services in the state are currently delivered to member libraries on an inequitable basis.
Member libraries are often unaware of system standards and often systems use thelr best
judgement in delivering services that may or may not be viewed as standard system services in
other parts of the state. in 2013, SRLAAW created a set of voluntary standards to help with this,
but service inequity continues. Creating mandatory standards would establish a baseline to
ensure every library in the state has consistent expectations of service from their system. This
will better enable local libraries to utilize local funding to augment system services in a way that
best serves their community.

A substantial amount of time was spent during the PLSR process in gathering disparate data
from systems to analyze system services and make recommendations for improvements,
Sharing best practices and standard reporting practices between systems will better allow for

11

MCFLS Board

PLSR Steering Comn. Draft Report #6

Attachment I (11/26/18}
Page 11 of 33



November 2018 Page 35 MCFLS Boarb

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6
Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on
Novembher 7, 2018

the measuring the success of PLSR recommendations as well as making further analysis and

improvements possible. In addition, especially with financial data, standardization will reduce
the time required for mandatery reporting for all systems. Libraries will also be able to compare |
system services easily, allowing libraries to easily identify and correct inequities of service !
delivery that may arise in the future.

Suggested Implementation Process

e DPI Establishes Library System Standards Task Force - December 31, 2018
o Model the process and document after the one used for current edition of the
public library standards
hitps:/dol wi aov/slies/default/files/imes/pld/ndffwisconsin public lbrary slandar
ds 6th edition 2018 finalpd!
o Compaosition 6-7 Members: System Directors; Public Library Directors or Library
Staff representing Grade 1, Grade 2 and Grade 3 libraries
o Task force members should represent a diversity of locations and sizes of
systems as service providers and of libraries as service recipients whenever
possible. Individuals with experience with different libraries and systems would
be a desired characteristic.
o Public Library Development Team to act as Task Force Resources and Project
Lead
s Review current accountability measures, what's working, what isn’t
o Currently there are several measures of accountability for library systems--
Governance; System Plan and Program Budget; System Annual Report; and
System Plan and Program Budget.
Release Draft for Comment - April 1, 2019
Final Draft - June 1, 2019
o  Where should the final draft be submitted? Is this something that ultimately
needs to go into statutes?
e |Implementation - July 1, 2019
o Soriing process: what could be done under ch 43, what are goals, administrative
rules, best practices?
e Incorporate into System Planning Document - August 1, 2019
Formalizing sharing of best practices
o System Accounting Standardization
m Convene Working Group of System Business Managers - January 2018
m Release draft recommendations - Aprif 1, 2019
m Final Draft and Implementation - June 1, 2019
m Incorporate into System Annual Report, Planning and Program Budget
Documents - July 1, 2019
o Consulting Services

12
P LSR Steering Com, Draft Report #6
Attachment I (11/26/18)
Page 12 of 33



November 2018 Page 36

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6
Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on
November 7, 2018

m  Convene Working Group of Contihuing Education Consultants - January
2018

m Release draft recommendations for tracking - March 1, 2019

m Incorporate any changes from library community - May 7, 2019

m Begin tracking CE/Consulting hours - July 1, 2079

o Trustee Essentials

m DPI| drafts Trustee essentials - January, 2019

m Draft Trustee essentials is presented at WAPL 2019 and shared with the
community

m DPlincerporates suggestions received - Summer 2019

m Trustee Essentials formally adopted and disiributed - Winter 2079

Suggested Funding Source(s)

LSTA - reimbursement to task force and working group members for meetings to discuss
and establish standards

WISE - any sort of interoperability to share best practices between software systems or
reporting forms, talking about data standardization, creating a best practices repository

Measuring Success

Standards are drafted and adopted by SRLAAW and COLAND
Number of systems who are able to comply with tier 1 standards
Number of systems who can comply with higher standards
Repository for best practices is created

Number of objects in best practices repository

Number of uses of objects in best practices repository
Measurable equity component

13

PLSR Steering Com. Draft Report #6
Attachunent I (11/26/18)
Page13 of 33

MCFLS Board




November 2018 Page 37

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6

Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on
November 7, 2018

Recommendation 2 - Incentives for Change

Recommendation

The Steering Team recommends the Department of Public Instruction develop and support, with
the assistance of an appointed commitiee, an incentive program that will encourage
consolidations of Library System services to local libraries that would include voluntary mergers
among the current 16 Wisconsin Public Library Systems and participation in regional or
statewide services, for the purpose of reducing administrative costs in order to achieve equity in
service delivery to Wisconsin public libraries and fo improve and/or expand services to all
Wisconsin residents.

Summary

This recommendation aligns with a series of studies documenting and analyzing the cost of
providing services by regional library systems, which documented the duplication of services
and administrative costs and suggested that opportunities to provide those same services ata
reduced cost would lead to improved services throughout the State. Consolidation of services
will lead to lower costs and increase equity of service delivery throughout the state. With
statewide or regional services and fewer systems, cost savings could be used for fo achieve
equity or for expanding direct services to local libraries.

Following the PLSR process, consensus was built around these ideas. Consolidation of
services and offering services on a regional, or in some cases, a statewide level and a reduction
in the number of Systems would offer opportunities for reducing costs and improving services.
Reductions in administrative costs would improve equity of service, increase efficiency of
operations, and provide greater “protection” against financial downswings.

There is also a strong consensus that any mergers of Library Systems work best when
voluntary and not mandated; further, it was agreed that incentives will help motivate systems to
undertake the process. Attempts at merging systems or consolidating services can be
challenging due to issues of local confrol, trust, and unclear processes and costs. There is no
clearly articulated process, checklist, or step-by-step guide for implementing these types of
changes. The DPlis well positioned to develop tools and to provide a level of support and
consultation needed by library (and library system) administrators and boards.

The experience of individuals involved in both successful and unsuccessful mergers and
consolidated services can provide valuable input in the develepment of these guides and should
be asked to assist in their development and in identifying additional incentives, such as financial
support for associated costs such as legal consultation and public relations.

Value Proposition

Providing services to local libraries through Wisconsin Public Library Systems is imperative for
Wisconsin residents to have equitable access to quality services that meet their needs. The
reduction of overhead and administrative costs associated with System operations through
System mergers or service consolidation will benefit the equitable delivery of these services.
While every merger or move to consolidate will be different, certain elements must be present to
ensure success, including trust and commitment. The use of incentives can help fuel the

14

PLSR Steering Com. Praft Report #6
Atachment T (11/26/18)
Page 14 0of 33

MCFLS Board



November 2018 Page 38 MCFLS Boarij

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6 }
Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on 1
November 7, 2018

motivation needed to undertake the challenge of merging systems or moving to
regional/statewide service delivery. Financial incentives and professional support provided
through DPI will help with the direct costs as well as the personnel costs. A successful merger
and/or regionalized service can be a catalyst for encouraging others to consider merging.
Incentives to consider include funding for both future and the change process, such-as project
management, cohsulting, legal fees, planning, facilitation, legislative support, fiscal analysis,
and other related expenses. an action plan that can be followed, authoritative support from DPI,
funding for project leadership and support staff. These changes, when supported financially
and through expert professional assistance, can be empowering fo those directly involved, and
inspiring tc others.

Suggested implementation process

Upon the adeption of this recommendation, the Department of Pubiic Instruction should support
mergers and/or regionalization of services, by appeinting a small team consisting of DPI staff
and subject experts who have experience with merging or consolidating services, to develop a
step-by-step guids to assist systems that wish to voluntarily undertake such changes. DPI will
identify resources to fund incentive grants and develop a process and applicaticn for awarding
grants, that will cover costs related to project management, consulting, legal fees, planning,
facilitation, legislative support, fiscal analysis, and other related expenses. At such time that
Systems declare their interest in merging, DPI will play a leadership role in advising and guiding
the systems. They will develop standards and best practices regarding accounting and
bookkeeping practices to smooth future consolidation of services and/or systems.

Measuring success

Measuring the success of this recommendation will be in documentation of several deliverables
and in the action taken on the part of library systems to merge with others or to consolidate their
services with another system. Deliverable include: 1) A step-by-step guide to System mergers;
2) an incentive package to aid in Systems in these processes; and 3) a grants process and
application.

Success will also be measured by at least cne successful merger and one successful
regionalization of services. Quantitative and qualitative measures will be made using evaluation
tools such process surveys, salisfaction surveys, data analytics, interviews, etc., with the results
published in local and national publications and presented at relevant conferences.

15

PLSR Steering Com. Draft Report #6
Attachment T (11/26/18)
Page 15 of 33



November 2018 Page 39 MCFLS Boarcjd

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6
Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on :
November 7, 2018 i

Recommendation 3 - Reduce the Number of |
Systems

Recommendation

The PLSR Steering Committee recommends that the current number of regional public library
systems be reduced.

Summary

Sixteen regional public library systems provide services to public libraries in Wisconsin. Many of !
these services -delivered at scale- are now relisd-upen and save libraries hundreds of thousands
of dolflars on an annual basis. Since the passage of the legal framework allowing formation in
1971, systems have each evolved differently. Counties are the basic geographic building blocks

for systems, thus systems range in size from ten counties, to single counties. Over a number of

recent years, consensus has been growing among the library community that a strategic reduction

in the number of regional systems (through consolidation} would help address service capacity

issues. Adding to this consensus are a number of key reports by stakeholder groups, each

insinuating potential service improvements resulting from a strategic reduction. These reports

include:

e “Creating More Effective Public Library Systems” (2013/SRLAAW);
e ‘“Lean System Study Work Group Recommendations” (2014/DP1)
e “Strategic Vision for Library Systems in the 21st Century” (2015/COLAND)

In addition to the above reports, the concept of a strategic reduction in the number of library
systems was a key recommendation sent to the PLSR Steering Committee with a highly robust
degree of support from the participants in the PLSR Model Development Summit.

Value Proposition

There are some areas of the state where there is great potential value to be ‘'gained from a
reduction in the number of systems serving those areas. Achieved through consoclidation, it is
clearly possible that a smaller number of slightly larger multi-county federated library systems
would be able to furnish member libraries (therefore also patrons) with a higher quality, more
comprehensive set of services than most single-county library systems are able to provide.

In some regions of the state, strategic reductions in the numbers of systems will result in higher
quality, more comprehensive set of services than most smaller library systems can provide.

16

PLSR Steering Com, Draft Report #6
Abttactment I (11/26/18)
Page 16 of 33



November 2018 Page 40

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6
Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on
November 7, 2018

Suggested Implementation Process

In order to achieve the underlying goals of this recommendation, the following process {or some
version thereof) is advisable:

DPI should provide adequate resources and full support for implementation of
recommendation #7 “Using [ncentives to Drive System Mergers”;

Remove statutory barriers to library system mergers;
Document and share best practices for library system mergers;
Staffing changes, changes in leadership, etc. Consider consolidating through attrition;

Engage DPI consulting when system director position is vacated to explore consolidation
opportunities;

Encourage Library Systems with 3 or fewer counties first;

Support precursors to mergers, such as. [ncentivize ILS mergers.

Measuring Success

Fewer number of systems exist.

A comparison of the list of services available to a member library of a single-county
system pre-consolidation versus the list of services available to that same library after

consolidation;

A comparison of response times pre and post consoclidation from the time a service is
requested to the time the service is satisfactorily delivered (examples: resolution of IT
help desk tickets, library consuiting call-back times);

A comparison of the net funding available via the system to member libraries pre and
post consolidation.

17

MCFLS Board

PLSR Steering Com. Draft Report #6

Attachment I (11/26/18)
Page 17 of 33



November 2018 Page 41 MCFLS Board

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6
Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on
November 7, 2018

Recommendation 4 - Evaluate Funding Distribution

Recommendation

The Steering Committee recommends the Department of Public Instruction appoint a study group
tasked with conducting a thorough analysis of the current funding formula, including practices
utilized to apportion state aids for regional library systems.® As a component of this investigation,
the study group shall explere and propose alternative funding formulas, methods of
apportionment, or other solutions with potential to improve equity of access fo high-quality library
services. The Steering Committee further recommends that any actual funding change be
accompanied by an increase in state aid to library systems, in order to assure that no library
patron experiences a decrease in service due to adverse impacts upon any library system.

Summary

Each biennium, the Wisconsin legislature approves an amount of state aid intended to fund the
operation of regional library systems. This appropriation is further apportioned to the regional
systems by the Department of Public Instruction. In general, this process is conducted according
to a combination of statutery imperatives and administrative procedures. This formula -- as
criginally written -- combines aspects of population, gecgraphic area, and municipal, and county
expenditures to determine the amount each regicnal system receives on an annual basis. In the
late nineties, legislative evenis occurred which in effect “froze” the data sets used to calculate
funding levels of that time. Therefore, for at least twenty years, apportionment of state aid to library
systems has not been based upon up-to-date population demographics or municipal
expenditures, This is at odds with the intent of the original formula design as well as the 1999
attempt to replace local expenditures with shared revenue.

Throughout the PLSR process, discourse about the appropriateness (or fairmess) of the funding
mechanism for regional systems has persisted throughout the library community. At least one
alternative funding formula has been proposed, as well as a number of discrete factars that should
be explored (such as poverty, unemployment, and infant mortality rates). It is the belief of the
Steering Committee that a sufficiently vigorous investigation of possible alternatives to current
practice should occur. Such an investigation should culminate in meaningful changes that improve
equity of access to high-quality library services across Wisconsin, while ensuring no system sees
a decrease in base funding.

% The Department of Public Instruction provides a clear explanaticn of the formula and changes since it's inception at

18

PLSR Steering Cont. Diaft Report #6
Attachment I (11/26/18)
Page 18 of 33



November 2018 Page 42 MCFLS Boarb

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6
Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on
November 7, 2018

Value Proposition

System funding has a direct impact on local libraries’ ability to provide quality services to patrons.
To ensure every Wisconsin resident henefits from library services, funding should adequately
support the system services that libraries need. By conducting a thorough and objective analysis
of the current State funding formula, alternative formula options, and any potentially unintended
consequences, a solid foundation will be achisved for further decision-making and consensus
building.

Suggested Implementation Process

Appoint an implementation team.®
Conduct an in-depth analysis of the current funding formula, practices utilized to apportion
state aids for regional library systems as described in the recommendation.

e A budget should be established tc support the work of the task force including, but not
limited to project management, a third party consultant, travel, printing, and othar
miscellaneous costs. '

e The task foree should be in place no later than March 2019, with their report due no later
than September 2018,

Measuring Success |

Success will be measured by 1) the quality of the final recommendation and the rigor used in its
development; 2) the ability of funding levels to ensure that each system meet new standards of
service; and 3) the level to which equity is achieved while holding systems financially harmless.

8 The Steering Committee recommends a small number (3-7) of topical experts. Makeup of the implementation team should
minimize potential for conflicts of interest. hitps:/www google conurlTashtipfiaewiedae whadon upann.edwariclefis-vour-leam.-
-oossmail-whatsthe-rlaht-number-2/& sasDEuste 1541014 3426850008 usg=AFQIGNEF AZab TUICID IMIMopoNQLIAIP Sw

19
PLSR Steering Com. Drift Report #6
Attachment I (11/26/18) !
Page19 of 33 i




November 2018 Page 43 MCFLS Boarfd

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6
Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on
November 7, 2018

Recommendation 5 - Delivery Pilots

Recommendation

The PLSR Steering committee recommends that the Superintendent of the Department of
Public Instruction initiate one or more pilot projects relating to library delivery services. Such
pilot projects shall have the averarching goals of A) proving concepts relating to the PLSR
Delivery Work Group Report, B) decreasing wait times for patrans, C) improving overall
resilience of delivery services on a statewide basis, and D) reducing duplicated efforts.

Summary

Physical resource-sharing generates tremendous value for libraries and, therefore, citizens.
Sixteen independent regional delivery networks currently provide physical delivery of library
materials between Wisconsin libraries. These regional neiworks are each operated and
administered by regional public library systems. Each regional network’s hub is, in turn, linked to
the delivery service of the South Central Library System (headquartered in the metropolitan area
of Madison, WI). The end result is a resource-sharing architecture whereby a library patron in
Superior can request a library item from a library branch in Kenosha, and receive it in a number
of days.

In their report, the PLSR Delivery Work Group produced a number of recommendations geared
toward providing more equitable delivery services to all areas of the State. The end-model
originally described by the Work Group features eight larger delivery regions -each with a single
‘hub” location- that are interlinked. This delivery network was envisioned by the Work Group fo
be funded and coordinated as a single statewide delivery service. This would be an exiremely
significant shift in how delivery is provided in Wisconsin: a fact that was confirmed through robust
feedback received from the library community throughout the PLSR project.

It is of unique importance to note the role of the South Cenftral Library System in statewide
resource sharing. Statewide delivery exists in Wisconsin due to the South Central Library
System’s work in the early 1990's to establish it. As the service took on a life of its own, it required
that SCLS relocate to a larger facility, and develop internal management and logistics structures
to support both the statewide service and SCLS's delivery service to its member libraries,

20

PLSR Steering Com. Draft Report #6
Attaclment I (11/26/18)
Page 20 of 33



November 2018 Page 44 MCFLS Boar

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6
Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on
November 7, 2018

Value ;Prdb‘osition‘

e Through the pilot project approach, many of the concepts addressed in the Delivery Work
Group report may be tested in a gradual fashion without putting the entire statewide
infrastructure under stress.

s Equity of access fo rapid, efficient delivery services will be increased in areas of the state
under stress related to funding levels.

« Should the pilot project approach be successful, a blueprint will thus exist for further stages
of transition.

» Should regional consolidations occur, efficiencies will be gained:

o Transit times - resulting in patrons gefting materials faster.
o Miles travelled - resulting in fuel cost efficiencies.
o Reduction of duplicated administrative overhead - resulting in economies of scale,

e Should regional consolidations of delivery occur -- either as part of a pilot project or in the
latter stages of transition to the end-model proposed by the Work Group -- it is possible
that existing regicnal library systems may see a reduction in delivery-related costs and a
net increase in funding available for other services.

21

PLSR Steering Com. Draft Report #6
Attachment I (11/26/18)
Page 21 of 33




November 2018 Page 45 MCFLS Board

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6
Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on
November 7, 2018 '

Suggested implementation process

One of the most common themes expressed by the library community through feedback during
the PLSR process is that change should be rooted in sound empirical research, well-plannad,
incremental, and voluntary. The Stesring Committee understands that, in order to satisfy these
imperatives, reinvention of library delivery services may unfold in a manner that differs from the
exact path laid out in the Delivery Work Group recommendations. However, for the purpese of
laying the first cobblestones of a path toward achievement of the vision laid-out by the Work
Group, the following process may he used:

+ Hire a project manager and appoint a small task-force to oversee implementation of one
ot more pilot projects related to delivery service. |

e |dentify regions of the state where delivery-reiated pilot projects would create the :

necessary data to determine if more wide reaching changes to delivery are in the best
interest of the state.
Work with systems in identified regions to coordinate delivery and establish a single hub.
Further work with systems in identified regions to create a link to South Central Library
System, and/or other [inks to any future additional regional hubs as described in the
delivery workgroup report.

o Utilize the Delivery Work Group recommendations to guide further development of regions
to establish suggested initial core statewide hub connections between regions in the south
and north of the new model:

o  Working with the current Indianhead and Wisconsin Valley library systems to
establish a northern hub to provide connection with a southern hub for statewide
delivery.

= This pilot would include mast or all of regions #2 and #3 in the map below.
It would include nonpublic as well as public library delivery clients.

m Both ofthese systems use the same contracted vendor, which should make
the transition easier.

m  Northern Waters Library System (region #1 below) could be added later, if
this proof of concept is successful.

m Regions #4 could also be added later, completing the proposed delivery
plan for the northern part of the state.

o Working with the current Winding Rivers, Southwest, and South Central Library
systems to improve delivery setvice in the southwest region while also establishing
as southern hub to connect to the north (see above).

m Delivery in proposed region #5 (see map) would be provided by Winding
- Rivers. - Lo ‘ ' - ' '
m Delivery in proposed region #7 weuld be provided by South Central.
Delivery in Southwest would be increased to 4 or 5 days depending on
avalilahility of resources.

22

PLSR Steering Com. Dmft Report #6
- Attaclment I (11/26/18)
Page 22 of 33



November 2018 Page 46 MCFLS Board

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6
Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on
November 7, 2018

o The advantages of these pilots are: |
m They demonsfrate the feasibility of the new concept in both a vendor i
provided and library provided delivery environment.
m By eliminating the current Western Route of the statewide delivery, those
funds would be available for establishing a north/south hub connection.
These hubs would replace the current route,
m  Nonpublic participants in the statewide network could be provided with
increased frequency of delivery without increased cost.
m The underserved libraries in the southwest could receive increased
frequency of delivery without increased cost.
e Using an incremental implementation process, measure feasibility in an ongoing fashion
through data gathering, cost analysis and evaluation of standards.
» A hybrid approach of contracted vendors and in-house delivery operations is needed for
a stable delivery service.
* Any compestitive bid processes will not make final decisions of service providers based on
cost alone. The average per stop costs that currently exist in the state is essentially equal
batween the systems utilizing a contracted delivery service and those operating an in- |
house service. A balanced approach to maintain service stability can be done in a way
that is also most cost effective.

The map on page XX shows the recommended eight regions maodel and possible hubs (starred
on the map) in each region. While the delivery hubs will likely coincide with existing system or
vendor locations in some regicns during implementation, delivery hubs in this model are not fixed
long-term as the potential for changing vendors through a competitive bid process may impact
where a delivery hub is located.

Measuring Success

For the purposes of evaluation, a number of processes and data points could be gathered and
analyzed at different times. To be sure, cost data (including “cost-per-stop”), transit metrics and
patron wait-times should all be gathered at the beginning, during, and after “go live” of any
delivery-related pilot projects and compared in an ongoing analysis. Doing this will ensure that
success of the pilot(s) can be evaluated based on hard data. Service levels should also be
evaluated throughout the process. For example, the number of delivery days per week should
be analyzed across the state in order to demaonstrate whether equity of access to high-quality
service is increasing. In a more subjective -- yet important - sense, satisfaction levels among
libraries and patrons should also be gathered before, during, and after.

23
PLSR Steering Com. Draft Report #06 ' ' i
Attachment I (11/26/18) :
Page 23 of 33



November 2018 Page 47 MCFLS Boara

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6

Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on
November 7, 2018

Recommendation 6 - Discovery Layer

Recommendation

The Department of Public Instruction will engage with topical experts, regional public library
systemns, and the library community at-large to create an effective, well-managed, state-scale
library discovery layer.

Summary

A “discovery layer” refers to the visual interface used by library patrons to find, identify, select,
and obtain the various types of resources offered by the 21st century public [ibrary. These
resources include physical books and audiovisual materials, as well as an ever-broadening variety
of downloadable and streamable digital resources such as audiobooks, feature films, news and/or
scholarly articles, and other digital content.

The PLSR process has resulted in an unprecedented degree of understanding in regard to the
commonalities and differences between library management software products. Likewise, it has
also produced greater awareness of how library patrons seek resources, how discovery services
are provided by the current regional library systems, and how those services are funded and
managed.

Also throughout the PLSR process, the concept of a state-scale discovery layer option has
maintained a robust degree of support from project participants, the library community, and cther
stakeholder groups.

Goals of the Recommendation

e Achieve interoperability between the various library management software platforms used
in Wisconsin (COLAND Strategic Direction #2);

¢ Provide a best-in-class search interface option that allows patrons seamless access to
library collections (both physical and digital) across the state regardiess of where they live
(COLAND Strategic Direction #3);

¢ Reduce procurement, budgeting, training and technical administration efforts that are
duplicated by the current sixteen regional systems in maintaining fourteen discrete online
discovery platforms, and;

¢ Embrace the critical need of libraries (and regional systems) to make decisions and tailor
services in response to the needs of library patrons where they are.

24

PLSR Steering Con Braft Report-#6
Attachment I (11/26/18)
Page 24 of 33



November 2018 Page 48 MCFLS Boar%d

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6
Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on
November 7, 2018

¢ Add a bullet here pointing to possibility of opening up a new collaboration space in regard
to making digital resources available - Badgerlink content, overdrive content, local
collections or other content licensed locally or regionally.

Value Proposition ‘

Wisconsin libraries already lead the nation in regard fo sharing resources. However, the set of
technologies relied upon to accomplish this are aging (for footnote: z39.50 originates in the
1970s). Successful creation of an effective, well-managed discovery layer at state-scale would
improve services to patrons in the following ways:

s Library patrons would be able to search the collections of any public library in the state,
ohtaining rich, detailed and vibrant results that are optimized to achieve the shortest
delivery time based on their geographic location;

s Library systems and/or individual libraries that do not have the resources to purchase or
operate top-tier library management software would nonetheless benefit, dramatically
increasing the baseline patron experience;

» Discovery-based interoperability between existing library management software would
open up a significant hew collaboration space - remaving a barrier to new partnerships
and allowing freer communication between libraries.

Suggested Implementation Process

¢ Hire or appoint a project manager and/or small task-farce vested with the ability to drive
the project;

e Conduct a general riskibenefit assessment in order to identify unanticipated
conseqguences,;

e« Conduct a governance assessment in order to determine how decisions impacting the
laok, feel and function of the state-scale discovery layer will be mads;

e Conduct a needs assessment to identify minimum technical requirements necessary fo
achieve interoperability between different library management software platforms;

¢ I|dentify a communication protocol that meets the above determined requirements for
interoperability;

o [dentlfy and use leverage to ensure that all major library software vendors domg business
in Wisconsin support the chosen protocol or framework; : :

o Create, if necessary, an application capable of translating action messages between all
major library management systems;

25

PLSR Steering Corit, Diaft Report #6
Attachment I (11/26/18)
Page 25 of 33



November 2018 Page 49 MCFLS Board

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6

Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on
November 7, 2018

» Explore the current capabilities of library software vendor discovery products, including
open-source platforms;

o Conduct a fiscal assessment to determine costs when scaled to the entire state;

+ Organize a process to evaluate and select a product that will serve as the state-scale
discovery layer;

e Create a structure for ongoing evaluation and improvement.

Measuring success

It is recommended that a statewide “importance/effectiveness” survey be developed, and
deployed both before and after implementation, This survey should include an in-depth list of
currently available and desired features of library discovery software. By deploying the survey
before and after, comparisons may be made and conclusions drawn. For example: if - after
implementation - a significantly greater number of libraries report a significantly greater degree of
access to features they deem as important, the conclusion may be drawn that the project resulted
in better service to more libraries.

26

PLSR Steering Com. Diaft Report #6
Attachment I (11/26/18)
Page 26 of 33



November 2018 Page 50 MCFLS Boarb

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6
Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on
November 7, 2018

Recommendation 7 — Learning Management
System for Professional Development

Recommendation

Create and deploy a learning management system capable of A) housing and delivering content
related to library professional development, B} managing a paperless system of certification and
validation, and C) offering a statewide calendar of professional development opportunities for
librarians and trustees.

Summary

Wisconsin is made stronger through a dedicated corps of library professionals, Like many other

professions, ongoing professional development opportunities are needed fo maintain a sharp

edge, Wisconsin requires that library and regional system directors maintain certification through i
the Department of Public Instruction. This ensures that libraries are managed efficiently and :
effectively.

Historically, each regional library system has provided local professional development

opportunities to its member libraries, and managed the process of certifying local staff. As the

avallability of new learning technologies has accelerated, many library systems have begun to

collaborate, share content, and work together. This area is ripe for further positive change.

However, the certification process is still entirely paper-based and requires many “touches” by

local, regional, and state individuals. ,

The learning management system should meet, and exceed, the professional development needs

of library professionals and library board trustees throughout Wisconsin. This system wouid serve

as a repository of online professional development content (streaming courses, webinars, etc.)

while also providing library staff and trusiees with the ability to locate nearby in-person

professional development activities through incorporation of an interactive event calendar, It is

further envisioned that this portal will include the capability for library professionals to manage

their own certification status online, while providing DPI the capability to exercise their statutory

oversight obligation in a manner that is both efficient and effective.

Goals of the Recommendation

The goals of this recommendation are to:
e Furnish library professionals with a more effective means of discovering and obtaining
content and instruction that is directly applicable to their professional development.

27

T PLSR Steeriiig Coint. Draft Report #6
Attachment I (11/26/18)
Page 27 of 33



November 2018 Page 51

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6
Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on
November 7, 2018

Eliminate the currently paper-based process of certification, in favor of a user-friendly
online system to streamline the process of applying for certification, submitting and
tracking contact hours, validating contact hours, and granting of certification (or
recertification) status.

Foster collaboration between agencies that offer professional development opportunities
through implementation of a curated calendar of events and opportunities across the entire
state.

Value Proposition

Creation of a web-based CE Portal based upon modern technologies and best practices would
have a number of positive impacts:

Public librarian certification requirements in Wisconsin date back to as early as 1921.
Modernizing this process would benefit our state by ensuring the presence of highly
qualified leaders in the profession, while leveraging technology to reduce general
administrative overhead (COLAND Strategic Direction #3).

A well-curated learning management platform would significantly reduce the valuable time
required to locate professional development opportunities. This, in turn, would result in
more time spent providing direct service to the public (COLAND Strategic Direction #2).

Current practice is for each regional library system to provide opportunities for professional
development to member libraries. Therefore, quality and frequency vary greatly. Creation
of a single online tool geared toward professional development for librarians and library
trustees would reduce duplication of effort and spur collaboration while simultaneously
improving equity of access to many high-quality professional development opportunities
on a statewide basis (COLAND Strategic Direction #5).

Suggested Implementation process

Appoint a small implementation team of well-qualified individuals.

Consider hiring a project manager to drive the project, manage the implementation team,
and serve as a bridge between stakeholder groups.

Review any specifications for the platform that have been created to date, and create an
authoritative [list.

Compare specifications with existing learning management system vendor capabilities.
Explore potential cost, quality and feasibility of a tool developed “in house” by DPI or
Department of Administration (DOA) personnel.

Utilize platform specifications document to craft a Request for Pricing (RFP) or Request
for Information (RFI). Distribute the request to qualified learning management system
vendors and/or software development agencies.

28
"~ PLSR Steering Com. Draft Report #6
Attachment I (11/26/18)
Page 28 of 33

MCFLS Boar




November 2018 Page 52 MCFLS Boar

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6
Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on
November 7, 2018

¢ Create a process to evaluate software options, including:
o Ability to meet content requirements and goals of this PLSR recommendation
o User Experience
o Administration requirements (back-end management})
o Cost

Note: Any procurement process should emphasize results aver cost. For example: selection of a
platform simply because it complies with DPI procurement guidelines and is low-cost would not
be appropriate and should be avoided through process design.

Measuring Success

¢ Workflow analysis of certification process

e A general survey should be completed to assess levels of satisfaction among library
professionals with respect to access to (and quality of) professional development
resources. This survey could also be done “before™ and “after” for purposes of comparison.

e An analysis should be conducted by an external party to assess levels of collaboration
between regionai library systems.

28
" PLSR St'eer'ing Com. Dmft _I_ie;t;brf 46
Aftachment I (11/26/18)
Page 29 of 33




November 2018 Page 53 MCFLS Boarb
1

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6

Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on
November 7, 2018

Appendix A: Library Systems in Wisconsin: A Brief
History

Wisconsin's library system law, providing funding for coordinated regional library services,
officially went into effect in 1971 when Senate Bill 47 was signed into law. The creation of public
library systems fostered the establishment of a strong network of resource sharing and mutually
beneficial interdependence. The actual creation and development of public library systems in
Wisconsin was a voluntary and gradual process. No county or public library is required to be a
member of a library system; vet, as of this writing, all of Wisconsin's 72 counties and over 380
public libraries are library system members. Wisconsin's seventeen public library systems
developed in distinct ways in response to the needs of their member libraries and area residents.
The systems have continued to evolve as changes in society, resources, and technologies create
new demands and opportunities.

The seeds for regional library services had been planted years earlier and several regional
services had coordinated cooperative services. In 1956, the American Library Association
published Public Library Service: a Guide fo Evaluation with Minimum Standards, which
introduced the library system concept. That same year the United States Congress enacted the
Library Services Act (LSA) to provide federal funding for extending and improving public library
service to rural communities. The Wisconsin Library Association and the Wisconsin Free Library
Commission submitted a plan for LSA funding. Also in 1956, twenty-five public libraries joined
together to form the Southwest Assaociation of Public Libraries. In 1959 they obtained LSA funding
to establish an ordering and processing center serving five counties, the predecassor to the
Southwest Wisconsin Library System. Also that year, a regional library system was established
in northwest Wisconsin serving five counties, the precursor of the Northern Waters Library
Service.

In 1963, the Free Library Commission, WLA and the Wisconsin Library Trustees Association
adopted A Design for Public Library Development in Wisconsin: Standards for Measuring
Progress. The following statement from that document helps to convey the vision " - :
"Simply stated, the library system concept means that only by working together, sharing services
and materials, can libraries meet the full needs of their users. Each public library, whatever its
size, is an important link in a system of libraries joined together either formally or informally."
That document described a shared vision of public library systems that ultimately led {0 the
development and adoption of 1971 Senate Bill 47 through a series of events:

® In 1965 the Wisconsin Library Commissicn was folded into DP| and became the Division
for Library Services.

# In 1266 WLA approved a legislative study program calling for legislation fo “implement the
library system concept and interlibrary cooparation in Wisconsin.

& |n 1968 the Library Development and Legislative Committee (LD&L) of WLA developed a
report for the legislature.

2 In 1969 thaf report was intfroduced as Senate Bill 363.

30

T mr e Y 27 Y 14 Sifz'e'ﬁr}ig'cm'ﬂ. D’mft Réﬁbf‘f#ﬁ
Attachment I (11/26/18)
Page 30 of 33



November 2018 Page 54 MCFLS Board

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6 .
Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on ;
November 7, 2018 !

# The Senate Education Committee recommended the bill be revised, and

g In 1971 Senate Bill 47 was introduced and, after extensive legislative efforts by WLA, was :
passed by both houses. The bill included the following declaration:

"Recognizing the importance of making quality library resources and
services readily available to all of the citizens of Wisconsin, the legisfature,
through this acf, seeks fo modermize library laws for public and schcol
libraries, to promote development and improvement of public libraries
through library systems and to provide maximum opportunities for
cooperation among alf types of libraries in order fo encourage the most
effective use of the library resources in this state.”

Since the passage of Senate Bill 47, a number of subsequent components of legislation have
been passed to supplement and refine the guidelines and processes by which library systems
operate. As of this writing, the following map represents the sixteen regional library systems in
Wisconsin:

e} Fedaratod.y

a s

Witwaukes Courdy
| Fesduratad Lilirary
_ Syslent

il GOt

] Hrowhead Kenoshe Counly

f . . Libeary System Library Bysien :
3 1

PLSR Steering Cont. Draft Report #6
Attachment T (11/26/18)
Page 31 of 33



November 2018 Page 55 MCFLS Boarb

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6
Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on
November 7, 2018

Appendix B: Funding Strategies and Sources

The PLSR project has not only produced the recommendations in this report, but a series of ceep
dives (in the form of wark group reports) into each Individual service provided regional library '
systems. Taken as a whole, it is abundantly clear there are a variety of opportunities to improve

access to services, and to improve the effectiveness of the services themselves. In order to move

forward without significant disruption to libraries and patrons, new service infrastructure must be

put in place in parallel with the old. Realistically, this will require additional sources of funding

beyond what is currently available in the form of state aid to regional systems.

Local library contributions - libraries paying into services

Through the process of recommendation development, a number of common themes have
emerged in regard to potential sources of additional funding to support implementation:

¢ In-Kind resources confributed by state agencies. The Department of Public Instruction,
Department of - Administration and -others have :significant staff assets, though it is
understood that resources are finite and priorities are many. These agencies could
incotporate implementation of PLSR recommendations into their planning processes, so
as to allow. Examples of in-kind resources might include:

o User experience (UX) or design consulting expertise in regard to a library staff
continuing education portal and validation tracker;

o Direct development of software or web applications related to a library staff
. continuing education portal and validation tracker or ILS discovery layer;

o Web hosting for a library staff continuing education portal and validation tracker;

o Administrative coordination of ongoing initiatives related to moving the PLSR
recommendations forward.

e | ibrary Services and Technology Act funding derived from the “Grants to States” program.
Through this program, Wisconsin is aliocated roughly 2.8 million dollars. Expenditures of
these dollars are prioritized by the Department of Public Instruction. Future planning by
the division could incorporate funding fo support implementation of PLSR
recommendations. Specific examples may include:

o A grant category tc support a regional delivery pilot build-out;
o A grant category to support development of a state-scale discovery layer;

o A grant category to incentivize development and implementation of system best-
practicesl" . L . . - - Coe ‘ - . LT o i .

32

PLSR Stecring Com. Draft Report #6
Attachment I (11/26/18)
Page 32 0f 33



November 2018 Page 56

PLSR Steering Committee Report Draft Version 6
Version of report draft upon adjournment of the in-person committee meeting on
November 7, 2018

e Library Services and Technology Act funding derived from other specific grant programs.
A number of non-block grant programs exist, inciuding the “Laura Bush 21st Century
Librarian” and “National Leadership Grant for Libraries” programs. Other programs may
be established in the future. These programs may provide an opportunity to acquire
funding for components of the recommendations that require more in-depth work.
Examples may include:

o Grant applications designed to fund additional project management capacity.

e Funding related to the Wisconsin Information System for Education (WISE) program. The
WISE program is focused on creating - and coordinating - the services and infrastructure
required to improve how we use data to learn and educate. This program has recently
been broadened to include libraries. It is possible that WISE-related funding (or other
assets) may be aliocated to lmplementmg certain recommendations. Examples may
include:

o Funding the development of a uniform set of LS communication messages,

o Using the list of ILS communication messages fo bu1ld a unlversal ILS
communicator tool to aid regional delivery pilots; T :

o Working with ILS vendors who do business in Wisconsin to ensure compliance
with uniform communication specifications;

o Funding and coordinating a process of product evaluation.

e Increase in state aids to the regional library systems. Annual state aid funding is allocated
according to state statutes and the administrative code. However, the library community
could establish future legislative priorities which include requesting & modest increase in
state aid which the existing systems would use to collectively fund specific implementation
components of PLSR recommendations. Examples may include:

o Funding for the development of a universal ILS communicator tool fo aid in regional
delivery pilots;

o Funding designed to ease transition to any changes to a modified funding
allocation formula;

o Any components of the recommendations or opportunities identified through the
PLSR process with strong collaborative potential.

This document should be read as an initial consideration of potential funding sources. It is possible
other sources may exist

33
PLSR Steering Com. Draft Report #6
Attachment I (11/26/18)
Page 33 of 33

MCFLS Board



BUDGET PROPOSAL FOR: MCFLS

PROPOSAL DATE: November 12, 2018
ESTIMATED PROJECT COST: $50,514.00

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Sierra Server Upgrade
SERVER HARDWARE: Sierra Application Server

32 Cores, 256GB, 600GB

qary DESCRIPTION Extended Price
1 HPE Proliant DLIR0 G10 2u 2 Socket Servers including:
2 HPE DL380 Genl0 Intel Xeon-Gold 6130 (2.1GHz/16-core/120W)
Processor Kit
1 HPE 256GB (8x32GB) Dual Rank x4 DDR4-2666 CAS-15-19-19
Registered Smart Memory Kit
1 | HPE Smart Array P408i-a SR Gen1C (8 Internal Lanes/2GB Cache)
2 HPE 300GB SAS 12G Enterprise 10K SFF {2.5in) SC 3yr Wity Digitally
Signed Firmware HDD
1 HPE 1Gh Ethernet 4-Port 331i Adapter
2 HPE 800W Flex Slot Platinum Hot Plug Low Halogen Power Supply
1 HPE iLO Advanced Management Engine
1 HPE 3YR Foundation Care 24x7x 4 hour DL380 Service
Total $ 14,475.00

terra Server Replacement Costs |
_ Adtachment J-(11/26/18)

Pagelof3 .

S Board




SERVER HARDWARE: Sierra Database Server
32 Cores, 256GB, 1200GB

Qry DESCRIPTION Extended Price

1 | HPE Proliant DE380 G10 2U 2 Socket Servers including:

2 HPE DL380 Gen10 Intel Xeon-Gold 6130 (2.1GHz/16-core/120W)
Processor Kit

1 | HPE 256GB {8x32GB) Dual Rank x4 PDR4-2666 CAS-19-19-19
Registered Smart Memory Kit
1 | HPE Smart Array P408i-a SR Gen10 (8 Internal Lanes/2GB Cache)

4 | HPE 300GB SAS 12G Enterprise 10K SFF (2.5in) SC 3yr Wty Digitally
Signed Firmware HDD

1 HPE 1Gh Ethernet 4-Port 3311 Adapter

2+ HPE 800W Flex Slot Platinum Hot Plug Low Halogen Power Supply

1 HPE iLO Advanced Management Engine

1 HPE 3YR Foundation Care 24x7x 4 hour DL380 Service
Total $14,875.00

SOFTWARE & LICENSING: Red Hat Linux
Qry DESCRIPTION Extended Price

2 Red Hat Fnterprise Linux Server Premium 3 Year Subscrigtion S 7,404.00

Subtotal $ 7,404.00

Sierra Server Replacement Costs
Attachment [ (11/26/18)
Page2 of 3




PROFESSIONAL SERVICES:

aqry DESCRIPTION Unit Price | Extended Price
1 | Digicorp Professional Services Estimated (Scope of $ 5,560.00
Work Required)
~Configure/build-out host server hardware
(5 install
-Application Vendor support
SIERRA DATA MIGRATION (PERFORMED BY INNOVATIVE):
ary DESCRIPTION Unit Price : Extended Price
1 | Data Migration $8,200.00
PROJECT NOTES: Applicable taxes, freight charges and trip charges are not included.

Quote assumes customer will provide dual redundant switches for
network connections, and all necessary infrastructure is in place.
Pricing is for budgetary purposes and subject to change.

Sierra Server Replacement Costs
Attachment J (11/26/18) o

Page 3 of 3



o FOF Mowih Bohih Sheet
MILWAUKEE § COUNTY Milwenkes, Wi 53793

FEDERATED LIBRARY SYSTEM | o A14-286-8149

rax: £14-285-3207

November 20", 2018

October/November 2018 Director’s Report

Summary of activities

1. Attended the Wisconsin Library Association (WLA) conference in La Crosse and contributed
to SRLAAW and WPLC meetings. Participated in a well-attended session led by MPL staff
and Dr. Latham on our fines study.

2. Met with Bruce Smith and Melissa McLimans from WiLS to coordinate the timeline for
strategic planning. Also made tentative arrangements with the UWM Conference Center to
host the development meeting.

3. Met with new trustee Suelzer for an orientation and overview of the system background,
services and current issues.

4. Implemented and disseminated information on the MCFLS WiFi hotspots with the help of
MCFLS staff. The new hotspots will allow access to the Sierra application from outside our
network.

5. Discussed server replacement plans with both Innovative and Digicorp to get the best deal for
the system,

6. Participated in a continuing education session on data dashboards led Jody Hoesling of South
Central. Training focused on using Tableau software for dashboards.

7. Worked with Bridges and MPL on the 2019 Continuing Education and ILS contracts,
respectively.

8. Attended the Glendale Common Council meeting on November 12" to discuss a proposal by
the Village of Brown Deer to merge both North Shore and Brown Deer libraries together at a
new location purchased by Brown Deer.

9. Participated in the State of the State compliance meeting initiated by DPI on November 14",
All system directors are

10. Attended an online webinar on the release of the newest mobile app from our current
provider, Demco Software called Discover Mobile.

Upcoming Activities

1. Assist in the release of the first of two strategic planning surveys on December 3™,

2. Contribute in the SEWI Continuing Education planning meeting on November 27%,

3. Investigate creation of an information security policy as a collaborative effort with Judy
Pinger from MPL.

4. Attend second session of Design Process training on December 12,

R e o Dhifectors Report
sl S oo Boroeies in Mieca s Coundy SERVE YO BETTER Attachment K (11/26/18)

Pagel of 1



